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NOTICE 

NOTICE is hereby given that the 34thAnnual General Meeting of the Members of Tarapur 
Transformers Limited will be held on Friday, 30th September, 2022 at 12:00 P.M at S-105, 1st 
Floor, Rajiv Gandhi Commercial Complex, Ekta Nagar, Kandivali (West), Mumbai- 400067 
to transact with or without modification(s), as may be permissible, the following business: 

 
 
ORDINARY BUSINESS: 

1. To consider and adopt (a) the audited financial statement of the Company for the financial 
year ended March 31, 2022 and the reports of the Board of Directors and Auditors thereon; 
and, in this regard, to consider and if thought fit, to pass the following resolutions as 
Ordinary Resolution: 
 
“RESOLVED THAT the audited financial statement of the Company for the financial year 
ended March 31, 2022 and the reports of the Board of Directors and Auditors thereon, as 
circulated to the Members, be and are hereby considered and adopted.” 
 

2. To appoint Mr. Sureshkumar Anandilal Choudhary, who retires by rotation as a 
Director and, in this regard, to consider and if thought fit, to pass the following 
resolution as an Ordinary Resolution: 

3.  
“RESOLVED THAT in accordance with the provisions of Section 152 and other applicable 
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013,.SureshkumarAnandilalChoudhary (DIN: 0049510), 
who retires by rotation at this meeting, be and is hereby appointed as a Director of the 
Company.” 

4. To appoint M/s GRANDMARK & ASSOCIATES, as Statutory Auditors from the 
conclusion of this Annual General Meeting until the conclusion of Sixth Consecutive 
Annual General Meeting and fix their remuneration and in this regard, to consider and 
if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution as an 
Ordinary Resolution: 
 
“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to section 139, 142 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘Act’) and 
other applicable provisions, if, anyof the said Act and companies (Audit and Auditors) 
Rules,2014 made thereunder and other applicable rules, if any, under the said act (including 
any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force) M/s. 
GRANDMARK& ASSOCIATES, Chartered Accountants (Firm Registration No.011317N), 
be and is hereby appointed as Statutory Auditors of the Company commencing from the 
conclusion of 34thAnnual General Meeting till the conclusion of 39thAnnual General Meeting 
at a remuneration as may be mutually agreed upon between the Board of Directors of the 
Company and the Auditors, plus out of pocket expenses, if any.” 

 
SPECIAL BUSINESS: 

3. To appoint Mr. Michael Elias Dalmet (DIN:07240618) as an Independent Director for 5 
years and in this regard, to consider and if thought fit, to pass the following resolution as a 
Special Resolution: 

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to Section 149, 150,152 and other applicable provisions of 
the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules made there under, including any statutory 
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modification(s) or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force) read with Schedule IV 
to the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 17 and 25 of the Securities and Exchange 
Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, Mr. 
Michael Elias Dalmet (DIN:07240618) who was appointed as an Additional Director, 
designated as Independent Director of the Company by the Board of Directors with effect 
from 01st July, 2022 and who holds office until the date of the Annual General Meeting, in 
terms of Section 160 of the Companies Act, 2013 signifying his intention to propose Mr. 
Michael Elias Dalmet (DIN:07240618) as a candidate for the office of a director of the 
Company, be and is hereby appointed as an Independent Director of the Company for the 
period of five years commencing from this Annual General Meeting up to 39thAnnual 
General Meeting, not liable to retire by rotation. 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT any of the Director of the Company, be and is hereby 
authorized to file necessary returns/forms to the Registrar of Companies and to do all such 
acts, deeds and things that may be necessary, proper, expedient or incidental for the 
purpose of giving effect to the aforesaid resolution." 

4. To appoint Ms. Reena Omprakash Trivedi (DIN:09523630) as an Independent Director for 
5 years and in this regard, to consider and if thought fit, to pass the following resolution as 
a Special Resolution: 

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to Section 149, 150,152 and other applicable provisions of 
the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules made there under, including any statutory 
modification(s) or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force) read with Schedule IV 
to the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 17 and 25 of the Securities and Exchange 
Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, Ms. 
Reena Omprakash Trivedi (DIN:09523630) who was appointed as an Additional Director 
of the Company by the Board of Directors with effect from 21st July, 2022and who holds 
office until the date of the Annual General Meeting, in terms of Section 160 of the 
Companies Act, 2013, a member  signifying his intention to propose Ms. Reena 
Omprakash Trivedi (DIN:09523630) as a candidate for the office of a director of the 
Company, be and is hereby appointed as an Independent Director of the Company for the 
period of five years commencing from this Annual General Meeting up to 39thAnnual 
General Meeting, not liable to retire by rotation. 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT any of the Director of the Company, be and is hereby 
authorized to file necessary returns/forms to the Registrar of Companies and to do all such 
acts, deeds and things that may be necessary, proper, expedient or incidental for the 
purpose of giving effect to the aforesaid resolution." 

5. To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following 
Resolution as an Ordinary Resolution: 

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the pursuant to the provisions of Regulation 23(4) of the 
Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as amended from time to time (“Listing Regulations”), 
the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) read with rules made 
thereunder, other applicable laws / statutory provisions, if any, (including any statutory 
modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof, for the time being in force), consent of the 
members be and is hereby accorded to the Board of Directors to enter into transactions, 
contracts and agreements with Related Parties of the Company at a maximum of Rs. 2 
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Crores per transaction. 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors be and are hereby severally 
authorized to determine the terms and conditions for the proposed transactions and all 
other matters arising out of or incidental thereto.  

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors be and are hereby authorized to 
do all such acts, deeds, matters and things that may be necessary, proper, desirable and 
expedient to give effect to the aforesaid resolution. 

 
 
 
 

By Order of the Board of Directors 
 

Sd/- 
Suresh More 

Managing Director 
DIN:06873425 
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NOTES: 

 
1. A member entitled to attend and vote at the Annual General Meeting is entitled to appoint a 

proxy/ proxies to attend and vote on a poll instead of himself and the proxy/ proxies need not 
be a member of the Company. The instrument appointing a proxy/ proxies should, than 48 
hours before the commencement of the meeting. 
 

2. A person can act as proxy on behalf of members not exceeding Fifty (50) and holding in the 
aggregate not more than 10% of the total share capital of the Company carrying voting rights. 
In case a proxy is proposed to be appointed by a member holding more than 10% of the total 
share capital of the Company carrying voting rights, then such proxy shall not act as a proxy 
for any other person or shareholder. 
 

3.    Corporate Members intending to send their authorized representatives to attend the AGM are 
requested to send to the Company, a certified copy of the Board Resolution authorizing their 
representative to attend and vote on their behalf at the AGM. 
 

4.     As per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, facility for making nomination is 
available to the shareholders in respect of the Shares held by them. Nomination Forms can 
be obtained from the Registrar and Share Transfer Agents of the Company. 
 

5. The information required to be provided under section 102 of the Act, SEBI (LODR) 
Regulations and the Secretarial Standards on General Meetings (SS-2), with respect to details 
of Directors who are proposed to be appointed/ reappointed under item no.2, 4 and 5 set out 
above are annexed hereto. 

 
6. The relative Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102 of the Act, setting out material 

facts concerning the business under Item No.,3,4,5 of the Notice, is annexed hereto. The 
relevant details, pursuant to the Listing Regulations and Secretarial Standard on General 
Meetings issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India, in respect of Director 
seeking re-appointment at this AGM is also annexed. 
 

7. All the physical shareholders of the Company are requested to dematerialize their shares. It is 
hereby informed that pursuant to the amendment to Regulation 40 of Securities and 
Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 
2015 vide Gazette notification dated June 8, 2018 has mandated that transfer of securities 
would be carried out in dematerialized form only. In order to comply with the above 
regulation the shareholders of the Company who are still holding their shares in physical 
mode are requested to dematerialize their shares. 

 
8.     Members holding shares in dematerialized mode are requested to intimate all changes 

pertaining to their bank details, NECS, mandates, nominations, power of attorney, change of 
address/ name, PAN details, etc. to their Depository Participant only and not to the 
Company’s Registrars and Transfer Agents. Any changes intimated to the Depository 
Participant will then be automatically reflected in the Company’s records which will help the 
Company and its Registrars and Transfer Agents to provide efficient and better service to the 
Members. In case of Members holding shares in physical form, such information is required 
to be provided to the Company’s Registrars and Transfer Agents. 
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9. Resident Indian members are requested to inform the Company’s Registrar and Share 
Transfer Agents M/s. Bigshare Services Pvt. Ltd. immediately of -  

a. The change in the residential status on return to India for permanent settlement. 
b. The particulars of the bank account maintained in India with complete name, branch, 

account type, account number and address of the bank with pin code number, if not 
furnished earlier. 

 
10. Pursuant to the provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule20 of 

the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 (as amended)and 
Regulation 44 of SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 
2015 (as amended), and the Circulars issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs dated 
April 08, 2020, April 13, 2020 and May 05, 2020 the Company is providing facility of 
remote e-Voting to its Members in respect of the business to be transacted at the 
EGM/AGM. For this purpose, the Company has entered into an agreement with National 
Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) for facilitating voting through electronic means, as 
the authorized agency. The facility of casting votes by a member using remote e-Voting 
system as well as venue voting on the date of the EGM/AGM will be provided by NSDL. 
 

11. In compliance with the aforesaid MCA Circulars and SEBI Circular dated January 15, 2021 
read with SEBI Circular dated May 12, 2020, Notice of the AGM along with Annual Report 
2021-22 is being sent only through electronic mode to those Members whose e-mail 
addresses are registered with the Company / Depository Participants. Members may note that 
the Notice of AGM and the Annual Report 2021-22 will also be available on the Company’s 
website at www.tarapurtransformers.com, on the website of the Stock Exchanges i.e. BSE 
Limited and National Stock Exchange of India Limited at www.bseindia.com and 
www.nseindia.com respectively, and on the website of NSDL https://www.evoting.nsdl.com. 
 

12. In line with the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) Circular No. 17/2020 dated April13, 
2020, the Notice calling the EGM/AGM has been uploaded on the website of the Company 
at https://www.tarapurtransformers.com. The Notice can also be accessed from the 
websites of the Stock Exchanges i.e. BSE Limited and National Stock Exchange of India 
Limited atwww.bseindia.com and www.nseindia.com respectively and the EGM/AGM 
Notice is also available on the website of NSDL (agency for providing the Remote e-
Voting facility) i.e.www.evoting.nsdl.com. 

 
13. Members are requested to intimate changes, if any, pertaining to their name, postal 

address, email address, telephone/ mobile numbers, Permanent Account Number (PAN), 
mandates, nominations, power of attorney, bank details such as, name of the bank and 
branch details, bank account number, MICR code, IFSC code, etc., to their Depository 
Participant in case the shares are held in electronic form and to Bigshare Services Private 
Limited, in case the shares are held in physical form..  

 
14. In case of joint holders attending the AGM, the Member whose name appears as the first 

holder in the order of names as per the Register of Members of the Company will be 
entitled to vote. 

 
15. Pursuant to section 91 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 10 of the Companies 

(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 and Regulation 42 of the SEBI (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the Register of Members 
and Share Transfer Books of the Company will remain closed from to Saturday, 24th 
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September, 2022 to Friday 30th September, 2022(both days inclusive) for the purpose of 
34th AGM.  

 
16. The Register of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel and their shareholdings 

maintained under Section 170 of the Companies Act, 2013 will be available for inspection 
by the Members at the Registered Office 
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THE INSTRUCTIONS FOR REMOTE E-VOTING, E-VOTING ON THE DAY OF E-AGM 
AND INSTRUCTIONS FOR E-AGM IS PROVIDED AS UNDER:- 
 

A. INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR REMOTE E-VOTING: 
 
The remote e-voting period begins on Tuesday, 27th September, 2022, at 9:00 A.M. and ends on 
Thursday, 29th September, 2022 at 5:00 P.M. The remote e-voting module shall be disabled by 
NSDL for voting thereafter. The Members, whose names appear in the Register of Members / 
Beneficial Owners as on the record date (cut-off date) i.e. Friday, 23rd September, 2022, may 
cast their vote electronically. The voting right of shareholders shall be in proportion to their 
share in the paid-up equity share capital of the Company as on the cut-off date, being Friday, 
23rd September, 2022. 
 
How do I vote electronically using NSDL e-Voting system? 

The way to vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting system consists of “Two Steps” which are 
mentioned below: 

Step 1: Access to NSDL e-Voting system 
A) Login method for e-Voting for Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode 

In terms of SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020 on e-Voting facility provided by Listed 
Companies, Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode are allowed to vote through 
their demat account maintained with Depositories and Depository Participants. Shareholders are 
advised to update their mobile number and email Id in their demat accounts in order to access e-
Voting facility. 
Login method for Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode is given below: 
 
Type of shareholders  Login Method 

Individual Shareholders 
holding securities in demat 
mode with NSDL. 

1. Existing IDeAS user can visit the e-Services website of 
NSDL Viz. https://eservices.nsdl.com either on a Personal 
Computer or on a mobile. On the e-Services home page 
click on the “Beneficial Owner” icon under “Login” 
which is available under ‘IDeAS’ section , this will prompt 
you to enter your existing User ID and Password. After 
successful authentication, you will be able to see e-Voting 
services under Value added services. Click on “Access to 
e-Voting” under e-Voting services and you will be able to 
see e-Voting page. Click on company name or e-Voting 
service provider i.e. NSDLand you will be re-directed to 
e-Voting website of NSDL for casting your vote during the 
remote e-Voting period Ifyou are not registered for IDeAS 
e-Services, option to register is available at 
https://eservices.nsdl.com.  Select “Register Online for 
IDeAS Portal” or click at 
https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.jsp 

2. Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by 
typing the following URL: https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ 
either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile. Once the 
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home page of e-Voting system is launched, click on the 
icon “Login” which is available under 
‘Shareholder/Member’ section. A new screen will open. 
You will have to enter your User ID (i.e. your sixteen digit 
demat account number hold with NSDL), Password/OTP 
and a Verification Code as shown on the screen. After 
successful authentication, you will be redirected to NSDL 
Depository site wherein you can see e-Voting page. Click 
on company name or e-Voting service provider i.e. 
NSDLand you will be redirected to e-Voting website of 
NSDL for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting 
period.  

3. Shareholders/Members can also download NSDL Mobile 
App “NSDL Speede” facility by scanning the QR code 
mentioned below for seamless voting experience. 

Individual Shareholders 
holding securities in demat 
mode with CDSL 

1. Existing users who have opted for Easi / Easiest, they can 
login through their user id and password. Option will be 
made available to reach e-Voting page without any further 
authentication. The URL for users to login to Easi / Easiest 
are https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/home/login  or 
www.cdslindia.com and click on New System Myeasi. 

2. After successful login of Easi/Easiest the user will be also 
able to see the E Voting Menu. The Menu will have links 
of e-Voting service provider i.e. NSDL. Click on NSDL 
to cast your vote. 

3. If the user is not  registered for Easi/Easiest, option to 
register is available at 
https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/Registration/EasiRegistra
tion 

4. Alternatively, the user can directly access e-Voting page by 
providing demat Account Number and PAN No. from a 
link in www.cdslindia.com home page. The system will 
authenticate the user by sending OTP on registered Mobile 
& Email as recorded in the demat Account. After 
successful authentication, user will be provided links for 
the respective ESP i.e. NSDLwhere the e-Voting is in 
progress. 
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Individual Shareholders 
(holding securities in demat 
mode) login through their 
depository participants 

You can also login using the login credentials of your demat 
account through your Depository Participant registered with 
NSDL/CDSL for e-Voting facility. upon logging in, you will be 
able to see e-Voting option. Click on e-Voting option, you will be 
redirected to NSDL/CDSL Depository site after successful 
authentication, wherein you can see e-Voting feature. Click on 
company name or e-Voting service provider i.e. NSDL and you will 
be redirected to e-Voting website of NSDL for casting your vote 
during the remote e-Voting period  

 
Important note: Members who are unable to retrieve User ID/ Password are advised to use Forget 
User ID and Forget Password option available at abovementioned website. 
 
Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode for any technical issues 
related to login through Depository i.e. NSDL and CDSL. 

Login type Helpdesk details 
Individual Shareholders holding 
securities in demat mode with NSDL 

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact 
NSDL helpdesk by sending a request at  
evoting@nsdl.co.inor call at toll free no.: 1800 1020 990  
and  1800 22 44 30 
 

Individual Shareholders holding 
securities in demat mode with CDSL 

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact 
CDSL helpdesk by sending a request at 
helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or contact at 022- 
23058738 or 022-23058542-43 
 

 

 
B) Login Method for e-Voting for shareholders other than Individual shareholders holding 
securities in demat mode and shareholders holding securities in physical mode. 
 
How to Log-in to NSDL e-Voting website? 
 

1. Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL: 
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile. 

2. Once the home page of e-Voting system is launched, click on the icon “Login” which is 
available under ‘Shareholder/Member’ section. 

3. A new screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID, your Password/OTP and a 
Verification Code as shown on the screen. 
Alternatively, if you are registered for NSDL eservices i.e. IDEAS, you can log-in at 
https://eservices.nsdl.com/ with your existing IDEAS login. Once you log-in to NSDL 
eservices after using your log-in credentials, click on e-Voting and you can proceed to Step 2 
i.e. Cast your vote electronically. 

4. Your User ID details are given below : 
 
Manner of holding shares i.e. Demat 
(NSDL or CDSL) or Physical 

 Your User ID is: 
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a) For Members who hold shares in demat 
account with NSDL. 

8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digit 
Client ID 

For example if your DP ID is IN300*** and 
Client ID is 12****** then your user ID is 
IN300***12******. 

b) For Members who hold shares in demat 
account with CDSL. 

16 Digit Beneficiary ID 

For example if your Beneficiary ID is 
12************** then your user ID is 
12************** 

c) For Members holding shares in Physical 
Form. 

EVEN Number followed by Folio Number 
registered with the company 

For example if folio number is 001*** and 
EVEN is 101456 then user ID is 
101456001*** 

 

 
5. Password details for shareholders other than Individual shareholders are given below:  

a) If you are already registered for e-Voting, then you can user your existing password to 
login and cast your vote. 

 
b) If you are using NSDL e-Voting system for the first time, you will need to retrieve the 

‘initial password’ which was communicated to you. Once you retrieve your ‘initial 
password’, you need to enter the ‘initial password’ and the system will force you to 
change your password. 

c) How to retrieve your ‘initial password’? 
(i) If your email ID is registered in your demat account or with the company, your 

‘initial password’ is communicated to you on your email ID. Trace the email 
sent to you from NSDL from your mailbox. Open the email and open the 
attachment i.e. a .pdf file. Open the .pdf file. The password to open the .pdf file 
is your 8 digit client ID for NSDL account, last 8 digits of client ID for CDSL 
account or folio number for shares held in physical form. The .pdf file contains 
your ‘User ID’ and your ‘initial password’.  

(ii) If your email ID is not registered, please follow steps mentioned below in 
process for those shareholders whose email ids are not registered. 

 
6.  If you are unable to retrieve or have not received the “ Initial password” or have forgotten 

your password: 
a)  Click on “Forgot User Details/Password?”(If you are holding shares in your demat 

account with NSDL or CDSL) option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com. 
b) Physical User Reset Password?” (If you are holding shares in physical mode) option 

available on www.evoting.nsdl.com. 
c) If you are still unable to get the password by aforesaid two options, you can send a 

request at evoting@nsdl.co.in mentioning your demat account number/folio number, your 
PAN, your name and your registered address etc. 

d) Members can also use the OTP (One Time Password) based login for casting the votes on 
the e-Voting system of NSDL. 

 
7. After entering your password, tick on Agree to “Terms and Conditions” by selecting on the 

10



check box. 
8. Now, you will have to click on “Login” button. 
9. After you click on the “Login” button, Home page of e-Voting will open. 

 
Step 2: Cast your vote electronicallyon NSDL e-Voting system. 

How to cast your vote electronicallyon NSDL e-Voting system? 
1. After successful login at Step 1, you will be able to see all the companies “EVEN” in which 

you are holding shares and whose voting cycleis in active status. 

2. Select “EVEN” of company for which you wish to cast your vote during the remote e-Voting 
period. 

3. Now you are ready for e-Voting as the Voting page opens. 

4. Cast your vote by selecting appropriate options i.e. assent or dissent, verify/modify the 
number of shares for which you wish to cast your vote and click on “Submit” and also 
“Confirm” when prompted. 

5. Upon confirmation, the message “Vote cast successfully” will be displayed.  

6. You can also take the printout of the votes cast by you by clicking on the print option on the 
confirmation page. 

7. Once you confirm your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your vote. 

 
General Guidelines for shareholders 

1. Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) are required to send 
scanned copy (PDF/JPG Format) of the relevant Board Resolution/ Authority letter etc. with 
attested specimen signature of the duly authorized signatory(ies) who are authorized to vote, 
to the Scrutinizer by e-mail to csbbansal@gmail.com with a copy marked to 
evoting@nsdl.co.in.Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) can 
also upload their Board Resolution / Power of Attorney / Authority Letter etc. by clicking 
on "Upload Board Resolution / Authority Letter" displayed under "e-Voting" tab in their 
login. 

2. It is strongly recommended not to share your password with any other person and take utmost 
care to keep your password confidential. Login to the e-voting website will be disabled upon 
five unsuccessful attempts to key in the correct password. In such an event, you will need to 
go through the “Forgot User Details/Password?” or “Physical User Reset Password?” option 
available on www.evoting.nsdl.com to reset the password.  

3. In case of any queries, you may refer the Frequently Asked Questions (FAQs) for 
Shareholders and e-voting user manual for Shareholders available at the download section of 
www.evoting.nsdl.com or call on toll free no.: 1800 1020 990  and  1800 22 44 30  or send a 
request to (Sarita Mote) at Saritam@nsdl.co.in 
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Process for those shareholders whose email ids are not registered with the depositories for 
procuring user id and password and registration of e mail ids for e-voting for the resolutions set 
out in this notice: 
 

1. In case shares are held in physical mode please provide Folio No., Name of shareholder, 
scanned copy of the share certificate (front and back), PAN (self attested scanned copy of 
PAN card), AADHAR (self attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) by email to 
tarapur.1989@gmail.com. 

2. In case shares are held in demat mode, please provide DPID-CLID (16 digit DPID + CLID 
or 16 digit beneficiary ID), Name, client master or copy of Consolidated Account statement, 
PAN (self attested scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self attested scanned copy of 
Aadhar Card) to tarapur.1989@gmail.com. If you are an Individual shareholders holding 
securities in demat mode, you are requested to refer to the login method explained at step 1 
(A) i.e.Login method for e-Voting for Individual shareholders holding securities in demat 
mode. 

3. Alternatively shareholder/members may send a request to evoting@nsdl.co.infor procuring 
user id and password for e-voting by providing above mentioned documents. 

4. In terms of SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020 on e-Voting facility provided by Listed 
Companies, Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode are allowed to vote 
through their demat account maintained with Depositories and Depository Participants. 
Shareholders are required to update their mobile number and email ID correctly in their 
demat account in order to access e-Voting facility. 

 
By Order of the Board of Directors 
For Tarapur Transformers Limited 
 
 
Sd/- 
Mr. Suresh More 
Managing Director 
(DIN: 06873425) 
Mumbai, 01st September, 2022 
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ANNEXURE A  
 
Statement pursuant to Section 102(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, as amended (‘Act’)  
 
Item No. 4 
 
Based on the recommendation of Nomination & Remuneration Committee, the Board of Directors 
by its resolution passed on 01st July, 2022 appointed Mr. Michael Elias Dalmet (DIN: 07240618) 
as an Additional Director of the Company in the category of Independent Director subject to the 
approval of members at the Annual General Meeting of the Company. 
 
The Company has received a notice as required under the provisions of Section 160 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 from a member proposing the candidature of Mr. Michael Elias Dalmet 
(DIN: 07240618) as an Independent Director of the Company for a term of 5 consecutive years. 
The term of Mr. Michael Elias Dalmet shall not be liable to retirement by rotation. In terms of 
Section 149, 152 and other applicable provisions of the Act, read with Schedule IV of the Act and 
the Rules made thereunder, and in terms of the applicable provisions of the Listing Regulations, 
each as amended, the appointment of Mr. Michael Elias Dalmet (DIN:07240618) as an 
Independent Director of the Company for a period of five years is being placed before the 
Shareholders for their approval by way of an Special Resolution.  
 
None of the other Directors or KMP of the Company and their relatives except Mr. Michael Elias 
Dalmet are, in any way, connected or interested in the aforesaid resolution. 
 
The Company received from Mr. Michael Elias Dalmet (DIN:07240618):- 
 
1) Consent in writing to act as Director of the Company in Form DIR-2;  
2) Intimation in Form DIR-8 to the effect that he is not disqualified under Section 164(2) of the 
Companies Act, 2013;  
3) Declaration to the effect that he meets the criteria of independence as provided in Section 149(6) 
of the Act read with Regulation 16 and Regulation 25(8) of the SEBI(Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 as amended ('Listing Regulations');  
4) Declaration pursuant to BSE Circular No. LIST/COMP/14/2018-19 dated June 20, 2018, that he 
has not been debarred from holding office of a Director by virtue of any Order passed by Securities 
and Exchange Board of India or any other such authority.  
 
The profile and specific areas of expertise of Mr. Michael Elias Dalmet (DIN:07240618)are 
provided as Annexure B to this Notice. The Board recommends the Resolution set forth in Item 
No. 4 for the approval of the Members. 
 
Item No. 5 
 
Based on the recommendation of Nomination & Remuneration Committee, the Board of Directors 
by its resolution passed on 21st July, 2022 appointed Ms. Reena Omprakash Trivedi 
(DIN:09523630) as an Additional Director of the Company in the category of Independent 
Director subject to the approval of members at the Annual General Meeting of the Company. 
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The Company has received a notice as required under the provisions of Section 160 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 from a member proposing the candidature of Ms. Reena Omprakash Trivedi 
(DIN:09523630) as an Independent Director of the Company for a term of 5 consecutive years. 
The term of Ms. Reena Omprakash Trivedi shall not be liable to retirement by rotation. In terms of 
Section 149, 152 and other applicable provisions of the Act, read with Schedule IV of the Act and 
the Rules made thereunder, and in terms of the applicable provisions of the Listing Regulations, 
each as amended, the appointment of Ms. Reena Omprakash Trivedi (DIN: 09523630) as an 
Independent Director of the Company for a period of five years is being placed before the 
Shareholders for their approval by way of an Special Resolution 
 
None of the other Directors or KMP of the Company and their relatives except Ms. Reena 
Omprakash Trivedi are, in any way, connected or interested in the aforesaid resolution..  
 
The Company received from Ms. Reena Omprakash Trivedi (DIN:09523630):- 
1) Consent in writing to act as Director of the Company in Form DIR-2;  
2) Intimation in Form DIR-8 to the effect that he is not disqualified under Section 164(2) of the 
Companies Act, 2013;  
3) Declaration to the effect that he meets the criteria of independence as provided in Section 149(6) 
of the Act read with Regulation 16 and Regulation 25(8) of the SEBI(Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 as amended ('Listing Regulations');  
4) Declaration pursuant to BSE Circular No. LIST/COMP/14/2018-19 dated June 20, 2018, that he 
has not been debarred from holding office of a Director by virtue of any Order passed by Securities 
and Exchange Board of India or any other such authority.  
 
The profile and specific areas of expertise of Ms. Reena Omprakash Trivedi (DIN:09523630) are 
provided as Annexure B to this Notice. The Board recommends the Resolution set forth in Item 
No. 5 for the approval of the Members. 
 
Item No. 6 
 
In view of the provisions of Section 188 (1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made 
thereunder, the Audit Committee and Board of Directors have recommended the consent of 
shareholders to set the maximum limit i.e. Rs. 2 Crore per transaction that your company may enter 
with its related parties i.e. Associates, Key Managerial Person, Relatives of Key Managerial 
Person, Company of relatives of Key Managerial Person.  
 
All the proposed transactions would be carried out as part of business requirements of the 
Company and are ensured to be on arm’s length basis.  
 
Members are hereby informed that pursuant to the second proviso of Section 188(1) of the 
Companies Act, 2013, no member of the Company shall vote on such resolution to approve any 
contract or arrangement, if such member is a related party.  
 
None of the other Directors or KMP of the Company and their relatives are, in any way, connected 
or interested in the resolution other than above mentioned.  
 
The special resolution as set out in Item no. 6 of this Notice of AGM is recommended by the Board 
for your approval. 
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Annexure‐B 
 

Details of Director seeking appointment and re-appointment at the Annual General Meeting 
Pursuant to Regulation 36 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015 and Secretarial Standards – 2 on General Meetings. 
 
 
Name of Director 

Mr.Sureshkumar 
Anandilal 
Choudhary 

Mr. Michael Elias 
Dalmet 

Ms. Reena Omprakash 
Trivedi 

 
Date of Birth 

 
28/01/1958 

 
07/10/1970 

 
24/09/1979 

 
Date of first appointment 
on Board 

 
30/09/2020 

 
01/01/2022 

 
21/07/2022 

 
Qualification  

 
B.com 

 
Graduate 

 
S.S.C. 

 
List of Directorship held 
in other Listed 
Companies 

 
Bilenergy Systems 
Limited (Cessation 
date 09/05/2022) 
 

 
Bilenergy 
Systems Limited 

 
- 

Memberships/ 
Chairmanships of 
committees of other 
Listed Entities 

 
1 

 
- 

 
- 

 
No. of Shares held 

 
- 

 
- 

 
- 

 
Relationship with 
existing Directors of the 
Company 

 
Brother of 
Rajendrakumar 
Choudhary 

 
- 

 
- 

 
By Order of the Board of Director 
For Tarapur Transformers Limited 
 
Sd/- 
Mr. Suresh More      
Managing Director      
(DIN: 06873425)   
 
Registered Office: - 
S-105, 1st Floor, 
Rajiv Gandhi Commercial Complex, 
Ekta Nagar, Kandivali (West), 
Mumbai- 400067   
Website:  www.tarapurtransformers.com, 
Email: tarapur.1989@gmail.com 
CIN-L99999MH1988PLC047303                                                                                                         
Mumbai, 01st September, 2022 
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT 

Dear Members, 

 

The Directors of your Company have pleasure in presenting 34thAnnual Report together with the 
Audited Accounts and Auditors’ Report for the year ended 31st March 2022. 

 

1. Financial summary or highlights/ Performance of the Company (Standalone): The financial 
performance of the Company for the Year ended 31st March, 2022 is as summarized below: 

 
           (Rs. In Lacs) 

Particulars 2021-2022 2020-2021

Gross Turnover & Other Income 1600.09 296.346

Profit /(Loss) before Interest, Depreciation & 
Taxation 

732.7 (2544.45)

Less – Interest  6.40 1.16

Profit /(Loss) before Depreciation & Taxation 726.3 (2545.61)

Less – Depreciation 113.46 118.36

Profit / (Loss) before Exceptional Items & tax  612.84 (2663.97)

Less: Exceptional Item - -

Net Profit / (Loss) before Tax  612.84 (2663.97)

Less– Provision for Taxation (Including Deferred 
Tax) 

- -

Net Profit / (Loss) for the year  612.84 (2663.97)

Add/( less) Surplus/ (deficit) brought forward 
from previous Year 

(8059.70) (5395.73)

Add/( less) Retain Value Assets  -

Profit available for Appropriations/( Loss) (7446.84) (8059.70)

Appropriations: - -

Balance Carried to Balance Sheet (7446.84) (8059.70)

 

2. Performance Review: 

The Net Turnover of the Company is Rs. 1600.09 Lakhs, and the Company has incurred net profit 
of Rs. 612.84 Lakhs for the F.Y 2021-22 as compared to loss of Rs. (2663.97) in the F.Y. 2020-21. 

3. Annual Return: The Annual Return of the Company as on 31st March 2022 in Form MGT-7 
inaccordance with Section 92(3) of the Act read with the Companies (Management and 
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Administration) Rules 2014 is available on the website of the Company 
www.tarapurtransformers.com. 
 

4. Number of meetings of the Board of Directors: During the year 2021-2022, 10 (Ten) meetings of 
the Board of Directors held on 21/04/2021, 29/06/2021, 12/08/2021, 25/08/2021, 08/09/2021, 
04/10/2021, 12/11/2021, 27/12/2021, 01/01/2022 & 11/02/2022 and Independent Director Meeting 
held on 18/08/2021.  

 
 

5. Directors’ Responsibility Statement: The Directors’ Responsibility Statement referred to in clause 
(c) of sub-section (3) of Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013, shall state that: 

 
a) in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards had been followed 

along with proper explanation relating to material departures; 
 

b) the directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made 
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the 
state of affairs of the company at the end of the financial year and of the profit and loss of the 
company for that period; 

 
c) the directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting 

records in accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets of the company 
and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities; 

 
d) the directors had prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis; and 

 
e) the directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable 

laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively. 
 

 
6. Auditors’ Report: 

As regards Auditors remarks in the Audit report, comments of the Board of Directors are as 
under:- 

a) Auditors’ Remark: 

The company has sent letters to customers in respect of trade receivables for confirming balances 
outstanding as at March 31, 2022, but in most of the cases the customers have not sent written 
confirmation confirming the balance outstanding as at March 31, 2022.  In the absence of 
confirmation any provision to be made for adverse variation in the carrying amounts of trade 
receivable is not quantified. 

Boards Comments on the same: 

The Board considers all outstanding balance of customers as on 31st March, 2022, are subject to 
provision. 
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b) Auditors’ Remark: 

The company has sent balance confirmation letters to parties who are not covered in the register 
maintained under Section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013, but in most of the cases the company 
have not received written Confirmation confirming the balance outstanding as at March 31, 2022. 
Further, in respect of loans granted, Repayment of the principal amount was not as stipulated and 
payment of interest has also not been regular. 
 

 Boards Comments on the same: 
Company has received balance confirmation from some of the Companies and is vigorously 
following up with the rest of the borrowers. Company expects to receive balance confirmation 
from all the companies to whomsoever advances have been given. Efforts are made to regularize 
arrears and recovery against overdue principal and interest. 

 
c) Auditors’ Remark: 

The Company has not provided for Interest payable to Canara Bank amounting to Rs. 1,778.68 
Lacs for the year ended 31st March 2022. The Company has also not made any provision for 
penal interest claimed by the bank. As a result the profit for the year ended 31st March 2022 is 
overstated by Rs. 1,778.68 Lacs & current liabilities as at 31st March, 2022 and are also 
understated by Rs.1778.68 Lacs and reserves are overstated by Rs. 1778.68 Lacs. 
 

  Boards Comments on the same: 

Based on the advice received by the Company, it has been decided not to provide any interest on 
liability of Canara Bank. 

d) Auditors’ Remark: 
The company has given Interest free unsecured laons of Rs. 49.63/- Lacs. 
 
Boards Comments on the same: 

Management represents that due to COVID-19 led economic instability, the borrowers are going 
through financial issues and have expressed their inability to pay interest and hence not provided in 
the books of accounts. 

e) Auditors’ Remark:  
The Company has not conducted periodic physical verification of inventory at reasonable 
intervals. 
In respect of traded stock at Mumbai Head Office, the details of finished goods stock storage 
location is not available for our verification. 
 

Board Comments on the same: 
   Management had properly observed the inventory at regular intervals. 
 
f) Auditors’ Remark: 

    The company is not regular in paying the Statutory dues regarding Service Tax, GST, Sales 
    tax, Professional Tax etc. 

 
Board Comments on the same: 

Company had paid the Statutory dues though some of the dues has been delayed because of the 
financial position. 
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ii) Secretarial Auditors remarks in the Secretarial audit report 
 
Auditors’ Remark   

(i) The Company has not complied the Regulation 17(1)(b) under SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 
from 4th December, 2021 to 31st December,2021. The Company has appointed one Independent 
Director on the Board on 01st January, 2022. 
 

Boards Comments on the same: 
Due to sad demise of our Director Mr. Lalit Laxiram Agarwal on 4th September, 2021; 
company was unable to find an efficient candidate for the period 4th December, 2021 to 
31st December, 2021. After which company appointed director on 01st January, 2022. The co has 
fled the waiver for the same. 
 

(ii) The Company has not complied the Regulation 17(1C) under SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 - 
The Company has not taken shareholders’ approval within three months from the date of 
appointment of Independent Director, which was appointed as an Independent Director on the 
Board on 1st January 2022. 

Boards Comments on the same: 
The company will be more diligent and will be more cautious in complying with SEBI (LODR) 
Regulations, 2015 henceforth. 

(iii) The Company has not complied the Regulation 27 under SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 - The 
Company has submitted Corporate Governance Report for the quarter ended 31st December 2021 
on 24th January 2022 with BSE Limited & NSE Limited. 

Boards Comments on the same: 
Due to some technical issue company was unable to submit Corporate Governance Report for the 
quarter ended 31st December 2021 on time. 

(iv) The Company has not complied the Regulation 30 read with Part A of Schedule III of SEBI 
(LODR) Regulations, 2015 - The outcome of Board meeting for Appointment of Independent 
Director on 1st January, 2022 was not submitted with BSE Limited & NSE Limited. 

Boards Comments on the same: 
The Company will be more proactive for ensuring the compliances. 

 

As regards the Secretarial Auditors remark, they are self explanatory in nature. 

 
7. Loan and Investment by Company: Particulars of loans, guarantees or investments covered under 

the provision of section 186 of the companies act 2013, if any , are given in the notes to the Financial 
Statement. 

 
8. Particulars of contracts or arrangements with related parties: The particulars of every contract or 

arrangements entered into by the Company with related parties referred to in sub-section (1) of section 
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188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain Arms Length Transactions under third proviso 
thereto is given in Form No. AOC-2. (Annexure 1) 

 
9. Reserves: In the financial year 2021-2022 reserve maintained with the Company is Rs. (1102.01) lacs 

while in year 2020-2021, reserve was (Rs 1714.85)Lacs.  
 

10. Dividend: Your Directors did not recommend any dividend for the year under review in view of 
losses incurred. 

 

11. Material changes and commitments, if any, affecting the financial position of the company 
which have occurred between the end of the financial year of the company to which the 
financial statements relate and the date of the report: No such Material changes occurred 
subsequent to closure of the financial year of the Company to which the balance sheet relates and the 
date of the report. 

 
12. Conservation of energy, technology absorption and foreign exchange earnings and outgo: The 

details of conservation of energy, technology absorption, foreign exchange earnings and outgo are as 
follows: 

 

A. Conservation of energy: 
i. the steps taken or impact on conservation of energy: NIL; 

ii. the steps taken by the company for utilizing alternate sources of energy: NIL; 
iii. the capital investment on energy conservation equipments: NIL. 

 
 

B. Technology absorption: 
i. the efforts made towards technology absorption: NIL; 

ii. the benefits derived like product improvement, cost reduction, product development or import 
substitution: NIL; 

iii. in case of imported technology (imported during the last three years reckoned from the beginning 
of the financial year)- 
a) the details of technology imported: NIL; 
b) the year of import: NIL; 
c) whether the technology been fully absorbed: NIL; 
d) if not fully absorbed, areas where absorption has not taken place, and the reasons thereof: 

NIL; and 
iv. the expenditure incurred on Research and Development: NIL. 

 
C. Foreign exchange earnings and Outgo: The Foreign Exchange earned in terms of actual 

inflows during the year and the Foreign Exchange outgo during the year in terms of actual 
outflows: Inflow: Nil and Outflow: Rs. Nil. 
 

13. Risk management policy:The company has addressing the various risks impacting the company, 
reviewing the risk management plan and insuring its effectiveness. The Audit Committee has 
Additional oversight in the Area of financial risks and controls. Major risks identified by the 
businesses and functions are systematically addressed through mitigating actions on continuous basis. 
The development and implementation of risk management policy has been covered in the 
Management Discussion and Analysis Report. 
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14. Corporate Social Responsibility: The Provision of Corporate Social Responsibility under section 
135 of Companies Act ,2013 and Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 
are not applicable on the Company. 

 

15. Change in the nature of business, if any: No 
 

 
16. Directors& Key Managerial Personnel: 

A) Changes in Directors and Key Managerial Personnel: 
         During the Financial year 2021-2022 the following changes have occurred in the constitution 

of Directors / KMP of the Company: 
 
 Mr.Michael Elias Dalmet (DIN: 07240618) was appointed as an Additional Director 

(Independent and Non-Executive Director)of the Company w.e.f. 01/01/2022 and has tendered 
his resignation on 02/04/2022 and thereafter appointed as an Additional Director (Independent 
Non-Executive Director )of the Company w.e.f. 01/07/2022. 
 

 Ms. Reena Omprakash Trivedi (DIN: 09523630) appointed as an Additional Director 
(Independent Non-Executive Director)of the Company w.e.f. 21/07/2022. 

 
 Demise of Mr. Lalit Laxiram Agarwal, Non-Executive - Independent Director of the 

Company, on Saturday, September 4, 2021. Mr. LalitLaxiram Agarwal was appointed on the 
Board of the Company in 2014. 

 
 Ms. Pooja Soni (Membership No.A34355), Member of Institute of Company Secretaries of 

India (ICSI), having good experience in Corporate Compliances, has been appointed as the 
Company Secretary & Compliance officer of the Company with effect from 27th December, 
2021. 

 
 

B) Declaration by an Independent Director(s) and re- appointment, if any:   
Ina accordance with Regulation 25(8) of SEBI(LODR) Regulations, 2015, a declaration has 
submitted by Independent Directors that they meet the criteria of independence as provided in 
Regulation 16(1)(b) of the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 and sub-section (6) of Section 149 of 
the Companies Act, 2013 to the company. 
 
A separate meeting of Independent Directors was conducted as per Securities and Exchange 
Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 on 18th 
August,2021. All the independent directors were present for the meeting. 
 
 

C) Formal Annual Evaluation:  
The Board has formulated a code of conduct policy for formal annual evaluation purpose which 
has been made by the Board of its own performance and that of its committees and individual 
directors. 
 
Policy on Director’s Appointment And Remuneration And Other Details : The Company’s Policy 
on director’s appointment and remuneration and other matters provided provided in section 
178(3)of the act has been disclosed in the corporate governance report. 
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17. Comittees of  the Board:  

The Company has constituted an Audit Committee,Nomination& Remuneration Committee And 
Stakeholder Relationship Committee As per provision of companies act and SEBI(Listing 
Obligation And Disclosure Requirement),Regulation 2015.A  Detailed note on the board and Its 
Committees are provided under the corporate Governance section in this Annual Report 
 
All the recommendation made by the Audit Committee were deliberated and accepted by the board 
of during the financial year 2021-2022.The Composition of Committees, as per applicable 
provision of the Act and Rules, are as follows: 
 
Name of the Comittee Composition of the Comittees 
Audit Committee Mr. Lalit Laxiram Agarwal (Demise w.e.f 

04/09/2021) 
Mr.Anil Mahabir Gupta (Chairperson) 
(Appointed under committee w.e.f 
04.10.2021)  
Mr.RajendrakumarAnandilal Choudhary 
(Member) 
Mrs.Kiren Shrivastav (Member) 
 

Nomination & Remuneration Committee Mr. Lalit Laxiram Agarwal (Demise w.e.f 
04/09/2021) 
Mr.AnilMahabir Gupta(Chairperson) 
((Appointed under committee w.e.f 
04.10.2021)  
Mr.Rajendrakumar Anandilal Choudhary 
(Member) 
Mrs.KirenShrivastav (Member) 
 

Stakeholder Relationship Committee Mr. Lalit Laxiram Agarwal (Demise w.e.f 
04/09/2021) 
Mr.Anil Mahabir Gupta (Chairperson) 
(Appointed under committee w.e.f 
04.10.2021)  
Mr.Rajendrakumar Anandilal Choudhary 
(Member) 
Mrs. Kiren Shrivastav(Member) 
 

 
 

18. Details of establishment of vigil mechanism for directors and employees:  
The Whistle blower policy of the Company was formulated and policy is available in the 
company’s website www.tarapurtransformers.com. 
 
 

19. Disclosure under the sexual harassment of women: Your Company is committed to provide and 
promote safe and healthy environment to all its employees without any discrimination. During the 
year under review, there was no case filed pursuant to the Sexual Harassment of Women at 
Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013.The Company has in place an Anti- 
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Sexual Harassment policy in line with the requirements of the Sexual Harassment of Women at 
Work Place(Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act 2013, An Internal Complaints Committee 
has been set up to redress complaints Received  Regarding Sexual Harassment. 

 
20. Managerial Remuneration: 

The information required under section 197 of the act read with the rule 5(1) of the companies and 
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules 2014, are given Below, 
 
The information required under Section 197 of the Act read with Rule 5(1) of the Companies 
and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 are given below: 

i. The percentage increase in Remuneration of each Director and ratio of the Remuneration of 
each Director to the median Remuneration of the employees of the Company for the 
financial year: The Company paid  1,07,000/- to Mr. Suresh More (Executive Director-
Chairperson) during the year under the review. 
   

ii. The percentage Increase in remuneration of Chief Financial Officer, Chief Executive 
Officer, Company Secretary or Manager, if any, in the financial year: In case of Company 
Secretary, Company has paid Rs. 60,000/- as remuneration during the year under 
review who was appointed during the part of the year i.e. on 27th December, 2021 

 
iii.  The percentage increase in the median remuneration of employees in the financial year: NA 

 
iv. the number of permanent employees on the rolls of company: 7 

 
v. average percentile increase already made in the salaries of employees other than the 

managerial personnel in the last financial year and its comparison with the percentile 
increase in the managerial remuneration and justification thereof and point out if there are 
any exceptional circumstances for increase in the managerial remuneration: Not Applicable 
as Company has not paid any managerial remuneration. 

   

vi. Affirmation that the remuneration is as per the remuneration policy of the Company: 
The Company affirms that the remuneration is as per the remuneration policy of the 
Company. 

No employee of the Company is falling under Rule 5(2) of the Companies (Appointment 
and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014. 

 
21. Details of Subsidiary/JV/Associate Companies: The Company has no Subsidiary/ JV/ Associate 

Companies during the year. 
 

22. Deposits: 
The Company has not accepted or invited any deposits during the Financial Year 2021-2022. 
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23. Details of significant and material orders passed by the regulators or courts or tribunals 
impacting the going concern status and company’s operations in future:  There are no material 
changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the Company. 
 
 

24. Auditors: 

Secretarial Auditor: 

According to the provision of section 204of the companies Act 2013 read with the the rule 9 of the 
companies (appointment and remuneration to managerial personnel) rules 2014, the secretarial 
Audit Report submitted by secretarial auditor-M/S M/s. Bhuwnesh Bansal & Associates, 
Practicing Company Secretaries, (Membership No.:6526; COP: 9089), enclosed as a part of this 
Report. 

Internal Auditor: 

M/s. Grandmark& Associates (FRN No:- 011317N) Chartered Accountants, Mumbai as the 
Internal Auditor of the Company for the Financial Year 2021-2022 and perform the duties of 
internal Auditor of the company And their report was reviewed by Audit committee from time to 
time.( Resignation of M/s. Grandmark & Associates, Chartered Accountants from the post of 
Internal Auditor of the Company w.e.f 24th August, 2022). 

25. Brief description of the Company’s working during the year: The Company has three 
manufacturing units at Pali(wada) 
 

26. Details in respect  of internal financial controls with reference to the Financial Statements: The 
Company has laid down  internal financial control with reference to the financial statement. The 
Details in Respect of financial Control and their Adequacy  are included in  Management Discussion 
and Analysis ,which form part of this Report.  

 
27. Cash Flow Statement : 

In Confirmity with the provision of SEBI(Listing Obligations and  Disclosure Requirements), 
Regulation ,2015 and Requirement of Companies Act,2013 the cash flow statement for the year ended 
31/03/2022 is annexed here to as a part of the Financial Statement. 

 
28. Postal Ballot : 

During the year No Postal Ballot were held. 
 

29. Share Capital: 
There was no change in Authorised&Paid up Share Capital of the Company during the year. 
 
The Authorised share capital of the company is Rs.25,00,00,000/-(Rupees Tenty Five Crore only) 
divided into 2,50,00,000(Two Crore& Fifty Lakh Only) Equity Share of Rs.10(Rupees Ten) each 
The Paid-up share capital of the company is Rs.19,50,00,110/-(Rupees Nineteen  Crore Fifty Lakh 
One Hundred & Ten  only) divided into 1,95,00,011/-(One Crore Ninety Five Lakh & Eleven Only) 
Equity Share of Rs.10(Rupees Ten) each. 

 
30. Listing with Stock Exchange:  The company share are listed on BSE as well as NSE. However the 

company is to pay the annual listing fees for the financial year 2022-23. 

25



 
31. State of Company’s Affairs: 

A detailed review of the company Affairs, operations, performance and future outlook of the 
Company and its businesses is given in the Management’s Discussion and Analysis Report, which 
forms part of this Report. 

32. Corporate Governance: 

We adhere to the principle of Corporate Governance mandated by the Securities and Exchange 
Board of India (SEBI) and have implemented all the prescribed stipulations. As required by 
Regulation 27 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, a 
detailed report on Corporate Governance forms part of this Report. The Auditors’ Certificate on 
compliance with Corporate Governance requirements by the Company is attached with the 
Corporate Governance Report. (Annexure5). 

33. Acknowledgement: 
Your Directors would like to express their sincere appreciation for the assistance and co–operation 
received from the financial institutions, banks, Government authorities, customers, vendors and 
members during the year under review. Your Directors also wish to place on record their deep 
sense of appreciation for the committed services by the Company's executives, staff and workers.
  

On behalf of the Board of Directors, 

For Tarapur Transformers Limited 

Suresh More 
Managing Director 
 DIN: 06873425 

 

Place:Mumbai 

Date:01st September, 2022 
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Annexure 1 

 
Form No. AOC 2 – RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURE 

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Companies Act 2013 and Rule 8(2) 
of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. 

 Form for Disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with related 
parties referred to in sub section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arms 
length transaction under third proviso thereto. 

1.    Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at Arm’s length basis.  

There is no such Transaction which is not on arm’s length basis. 

2.    Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions at Arm’s length basis. 

Sr. 
No 

Particulars   

a)    
    

Name (s) of the 
related party 
and  Nature of 
relationship 

1) Bil Energy Systems Limited- Associates 
2) Bilpower Limited- Associates 
3) Mr.  Rajendra Kumar Choudhary- KMP 
4) Niksan Engineering Co. Limited- Company of relative of KMP 
5) Choudhary Global Limited-  Company of relative of KMP 
6) Viniyog Mercantile Pvt. Ltd.-  Company of relative of KMP 
7) Veedhata Towers Private limited- Proprietary of Relative of 

KMP. 
8) Harsh Choudhrary – Relative of KMP 

c)    
   

Nature of 
contracts/arran
gements/transa
ction 

1) Remuneration paid to Mr.  Rajendra Kumar Choudhary of Rs. 
12.00 Lakhs. 

2) Rent Expenses paid to Mr. Harsh Choudhary of Rs. 1.20 Lakhs  
3) Loans & Advances received from Mr. Bilpower Limited of 

Rs.22.00 Lakhs. 
4) Loans & Advances given to Choudhary Global Limited 

amounting of Rs. 618.98 Lakhs. 
5) Loans & Advances given to Veedhata Towers Limited amounting 

of Rs. 188.5 Lakhs. 
6) Loans & Advances given to Rajendra Kumar Choudhary 

amounting of Rs. 2.50 Lakhs. 

d)    
    

Duration of the 
contracts/arran
gements/transa
ction 

 Yearly 
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Place: Mumbai                           On behalf of the Board of Directors 
Date: 01/09/2022     ForTarapur Transformers Limited 
 
 

Sd/- 
Suresh More 

Managing DirectorDIN:06873425 
 

e)    
   

Salient terms of 
the contracts or 
arrangements 
or transaction 
including the 
value, if any 

 

 Same as point C 

 f) Justification for 
entering into 
such contracts 
or 
arrangements 
or transactions’ 

In the normal course of business 

g)    
    

Date of 
approval by the 
Board 

10thFebruary, 2021 

h)    
     

Amount paid as 
advances, if 
any 

  - 

i) Date on which 
the special 
resolution was 
passed in 
general 
meeting as 
required under 
first proviso to 
section 188 

- 
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SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT 

FORM NO. MR – 3 

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2022 

[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule No.9 of the Companies 
(Appointment and Remuneration personnel Rule, 2014] 

To, 
The Members, 
Tarapur Transformers Limited 
S-105, Rajiv Gandhi Complex, 
Ekta Nagar, Kandivali (West),  
Mumbai - 400067 
 
I have conducted the secretarial audit of the Compliance of applicable statutory 
provisions and the adherence to good corporate practices by Tarapur Transformers 
Limited (hereinafter called the Company). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner 
that provided me a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conduct/Statutory 
compliances and expressing my opinion thereon. 
 
Based on my verification of Tarapur Transformers Limited’s books, papers, minute 
books, form and returns filed and other records maintained by the Company and also 
the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized 
representatives during the conduct of Secretarial audit, the explanations and 
clarifications given to us and the representations made by the Management and 
considering the relaxations granted by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs and Securities 
and Exchange Board of India warranted due to the spread of the COVID-19 Pandemic, I 
hereby report that in my opinion, the Company has, during the audit period covering 
the Financial year ended March 31, 2022, complied with the statutory provisions listed 
hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board- processes and compliance 
mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made 
hereinafter. 
 
I have examined the books, papers, minute books, form and returns filed and other 
records maintained by the Company for the financial year ended on March 31, 2022 
according to the provisions of   
 
(1) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder; 
(2) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (SCRA) and the rules made 

thereunder; 
(3) The SEBI Depositories Act, 1996and the Regulations and bye-laws framed 

thereunder; 

29



 

(4) Foreign Exchange Management Act 1999 and the rules and regulations made 
thereunder to the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment 
and External Commercial Borrowings; 

(5) The following Regulation and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and 
Exchange Board of India Act 1992 (‘SEBI Act’): - 
a. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares 

and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011; 
 

b. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015; 
 

c. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) 
Regulations, 2015; 
 

d. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2018; (Not applicable to the Company during the 
Audit period) 
 

e. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits) 
Regulations, 2014 and Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based 
Employee Benefits and Sweat Equity) Regulations, 2021; (Not Applicable to the 
Company during the Audit Period) 
 

f. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) 
Regulations, 2008; (Not applicable to the Company during the Audit period) 
 

g. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share 
Transfer Agents) Regulation, 1993, regarding the Companies Act and dealing 
with client; 
 

h. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) 
Regulations, 2009and The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of 
Equity Shares) Regulations, 2021;(Not applicable to the Company during the 
Audit period) 
 

i. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 
2018; (Not applicable to the Company during the Audit period) 
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j. The Securities   and   Exchange   Board   of   India (Issue   and   Listing   of   Non-
Convertible and Redeemable Preference Shares) Regulations, 2013; (Not 
Applicable to the Company during the Audit Period) 
 

k. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Non-
Convertible Securities) Regulations, 2021; (Not Applicable to the Company 
during the Audit Period). 

I have also examined Compliance with the applicable clauses of the following: 

(i) Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India. 
(ii) The SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 

2015pursuant to listing agreement entered into by the Company with BSE Ltd 
(BSE) and National Stock Exchange of India Limited (NSE). 

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provision of the 
Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above.  

I further report that, having regard to compliance system prevailing in the Company 
and on examination of relevant documents and records in pursuance thereof on test-
check basis, the Company has complied with the following laws applicable specifically 
to the Company: 

1.   Income Tax Act 1961 relating to Tax Deducted at source. 

 
I further report that the Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with 
Proper balance of Executive Directors, Non-Executive Directors and Independent 
Directors. The changes in the composition of the Board of Directors that took place 
during the period under review were carried out in compliance with the provisions of 
the Act. 
 
 
Adequate notice is given to all Directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and 
detailed notes on agenda were sent at least seven days in advance, and a system exists 
for seeking and obtaining further information and clarification on the agenda items 
before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting. 

 

As per the minutes, decisions at the Board Meetings were taken unanimously. 
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I further report that the Company have not been complied the provisions of below mentioned 
SEBI(LODR) Regulations,2015: - 

(i) The Company has not complied the Regulation 17(1)(b) under SEBI (LODR) 
Regulations, 2015 from 4th December, 2021 to 31st December,2021. The Company has 
appointed one Independent Director on the Board on 01st January, 2022. 

(ii) The Company has not complied the Regulation 17(1C) under SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 
2015 - The Company has not taken shareholders’ approval within three months from the 
date of appointment of Independent Director, which was appointed as an Independent 
Director on the Board on 1st January 2022. 

(iii)The Company has not complied the Regulation 27 under SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 
2015 - The Company has submitted Corporate Governance Report for the quarter ended 
31st December 2021 on 24th January 2022 with BSE Limited & NSE Limited. 

(iv) The Company has not complied the Regulation 30 read with Part A of Schedule III of 
SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 - The outcome of Board meeting for Appointment of 
Independent Director on 1st January, 2022 was not submitted with BSE Limited & NSE 
Limited. 

I further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the Company 
commensurate with size and operations of the Company to monitor and ensure 
compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines. 

 

I further report that during the audit period, the Company has passed following 
Special Resolutions which are having major bearing on the company’s affairs in 
pursuance of the above referred laws, rules, regulations, guidelines.   

i. Appointment of Mr. Anil Mahabir Gupta (DIN: 01128035) as an Independent 
Director of the Company for a period of Five Years. 

ii. Re-appointment of Mr. Suresh More (DIN:06873425) as a Managing Director of 
the Company for a period of Five Years. 
 

I further report that during the audit period, there were no instances of: 

(i) Public/Right/ preferential issue of shares/ debentures/ sweat equity. 
(ii) Redemption/ buy-back of securities. 
(iii) Merger/ amalgamation/ reconstruction etc. 
(iv) Foreign technical collaborations. 
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Place: Mumbai       For Bhuwnesh Bansal & 
Associates 
Date:30thMay 2022 
 
 

         Bhuwnesh Bansal 
Proprietor 

FCS No. – 6526 
CP No. – 9089 

UDIN: F006526D000423351 
Peer Review Certificate No.: 1708/2022 

 

 

 

This Report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure A 
and forms an integral part of this report. 

 

 

 ‘Annexure A’ 

To, 
The Members 
Tarapur Transformers Limited 
S-105, Rajiv Gandhi Complex, 
Ekta Nagar, Kandivali (West),  
Mumbai - 400067 
 
My report of even date is to be read along with this letter. 

1. Maintenance of Secretarial record is responsibility of the Management of the 
Company. My responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records 
based on my audit. 
 

2. I have followed the audit practices and process as were appropriate to obtain 
reasonable assurance about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial 
records. The verification was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are 
reflected in Secretarial records. I believe that the process and practices, I followed 
provide a reasonable basis for my opinion. 

33



 

 
3. I have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and 

Books of Accounts of the Company. 
 

4. Where ever required, I have obtained the Management representation about the 
Compliance of laws, rules and regulations and happening of events etc. 
 

5. The Compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, 
regulations, standards is the responsibility of management. My examination was 
limited to the verification of procedure on test basis. 
 

6. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of 
the Company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has 
conducted the affairs of the Company. 
 
 
 
 

Place: Mumbai     For Bhuwnesh Bansal & Associates 
Date: 30thMay 2022 
 
 

         Bhuwnesh Bansal 
Proprietor 

FCS No. – 6526 
CP No. – 9089 

UDIN: F006526D000423351 
Peer Review Certificate No.: 1708/2022 
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Annexure 4 

 
 

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS REPORT 

 

INDUSTRY OVERVIEW 

Distribution Transformers play a very important and vital role in delivering electricity to the last mile. It 
can be rightly said that the Distribution industry is bringing light in the life of the people.   The thrust by 
the Indian Government to provide quality power to each village and every household through various 
schemes of electrification like DDUGJY/ IPDS/ RAPDRP/ Saubhagya has given a huge fillip to the 
demand of distribution transformers all over India.The government plans to add 93 GW by 2022, this 
would fuel the demand for power transmission and distribution equipment in the country. 

Further, For the rapid development of the domestic electrical equipment industry, such as generation 
equipment (boilers, turbines, generators) and transmission & distribution (T&D) and allied equipment like 
transformers, cables, transmission lines, switchgears, capacitors, energy meters, instrument transformers, 
surge arrestors, stamping and lamination, insulators, insulating material, industrial electronics, indicating 
instruments, winding wires, etc. which encompassing the complete value chain in power generation, 
transmission and distribution, a holistic Mission Plan launched by the Department of Heavy Industry 
(DHI), Government of India, with support from IEEMA. 

India Power & Distribution Transformers market was valued at USD 2065.4 million in FY2020 and is 
anticipated to grow at a CAGR of over 6.89% in the next six years, owing to the growing demand for 
power due to rapid increase in population, industrialization, and urbanization. India being the 5th largest 
power producer in the world, in terms of installed capacity, is calling for an increase in the market of 
power & distribution transformer market. 

Government is taking major steps to strengthen the power transmission & distribution network and has 
undertaken initiatives such as UDAY for financial turnaround of power distribution companies.  

With implementation of UDAY and other discom schemes there is a huge acceleration of infrastructural 
amendment in India. This has influenced invitation for bides for refurbishment and up-gradation of 
existing T&D network. Thanks to Indian government in bailing out most of the discoms in order to make 
them financially self-sufficient so that they distribute electricity at reasonable cost to domestic and 
industrial users. It has really taken care of all the issues spread across India right from remotest village to 
the nearest town. So naturally transformers are on demand all across India because energy distribution 
always needs this single most important device in the network that is transformer.”  

Opportunities: 

In order to make growth in the industry, the government has launched schemes like DDUGJY, IPDS and 
NEF for improving distribution sector since distribution sector is a link between consumers and utilities. 
All these projects will lead to lot of demand of transformers in coming 3 years. But only there must be 
properly and timely implementation of these projects. 
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Other growth of the industry is based on the design. The design should be in such a way that material 
required for manufacturing transformers should be available freely (many suppliers) and less customized 
materials need to be ordered. The windings should be made easy so that workmen find them easy to 
assemble. The other growth driver is coordination between different departments (active path and tanks). 

Threats 

India’s transformer market is predominantly unorganised with many small participants catering to the 
smaller distribution transformer markets. This makes the market more competitive and price sensitive 
rather than quality.  

Economic growth has stabilized and downside risks have fallen. The company will have good opportunity 
to secure Projects orders. Although there is stiff competition in the market, yet because of vide product 
range, innovation and Adoption of new technologies. Company has taken various initiatives with an aim 
to address these concerns. 

Ratio: 

There is no Significant change in Financial Ratio as compared to the previous financial year. In the 
Current year, the Return of Networth of the Company is 1.88%comapred to 1.26% in the Previous year. 
The Company earned profit in the current year which result into showing the positive result in return on 
networth of this year. 

Product-wise performance: 

During the Financial year 2021-2022, your Company has achieved Total Turnover of Rs. 1600.09 Lac 
and has incurred Net Profit of Rs. 612.84 Lacs. 

The Company has net worth of about Rs. 847.99 Lac as on March 31, 2022. 

The Company has incurred losses during the year, mainly due to the fact that the nature of business is 
working capital intensive and we mainly deal with State Electricity Boards which are known for delayed 
payments. As payments are blocked with SEBI’s, there is need to borrow for short term to carry on 
operations, which impacts our profitability as high interest payments are to be made. 

OUTLOOK FOR THE COMPANY: 

The demand of distribution transformers will keep on increasing due to increase in generation capacity of 

both conventional and non-renewable sources due to increase in per capita consumption of electricity and 

new avenues like electric vehicle charging stations etc. The demand will also increase due to replacement of 

old transformers with energy efficient transformers. 

Large outlay by the Government on infrastructure projects and ambitious target of solar and wind energy 
projects is likely to improve tender / enquiry in pipeline for potential business. Initiatives such as UDAY, 
DDUGJY, aggressive renewable energy target, the new hydro policy and the massive transmission 
connectivity plans is expected to gradually ease competitive pressure. These reforms are ambitious. If 
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executed properly, they could have a significant impact on the sector in the next few years. With this 
background, the Company looks forward to improve business in volume term in current year, but margin 
continued to be under pressure in view of surplus capacity with organized sector players in industry. As 
the number of competitors in the higher range of power transformers manufacturing is very small, the 
board still foresees a bright future for the Company. However, the targeted profitability will be achieved 
only after the Company meets the minimum qualifying criteria set up by various utilities who happen to 
be our main customers. 

RISK & CONCERNS 

The major risk factors affecting the Company are over capacity in industry, non-lifting of ready materials 
due to cash  constraints at customers’ end building inventory and liquidity issues, increase in receivable 
positions due to delay in payment by certain customers, uncertainty in execution of low fixed price orders. 
The wide fluctuation of rupee against US Dollars also affects margin since the key raw materials, viz. 
copper, transformer oil, special steels for lamination, etc., are of import origin. Our future results of 
operations could potentially be affected by the following factors: 

 Our ability to manufacture transformers as per the requirement of our clients; 

 Our ability to continuously operate and maintain our manufacturing facilities optimally; 

 Our ability to continue to source raw material at competitive rates; 

 Our ability to manufacture transformers using the latest technologies in terms of modern 
materials, components and processes. 

 Our ability to generate working capital funds at reasonable interest rates. 
 

HUMAN RESOURCES AND INDUSTRIAL RELATION: 

The company has maintained very harmonious & cordial Industrial relations. There is continuous 
emphasis on development of human resources through training. The issues pertaining to workers are 
resolved in harmonious and in cordial manner through regular interactions. We believe whatever we 
achieved from where we started our journey long back is the result of efforts of our team. So, we 
consistently aim to provide a sustainable environment for learning right from the stage of recruitment to 
retention.      

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND THEIR ADEQUACY: 

The Internal audit was carried out by firm of Chartered Accountants, who conduct the audit on the basis 
of Annual Audit Plan. The processes include review and evaluation of effectiveness of the existing 
processes, controls and compliances. It also ensures adherence to policies and systems, and mitigation of 
the operational risks perceived for each areas under audit. Significant observations including 
recommendations for improvement of the business processes were reviewed by the Management before 
reporting to the Audit Committee. The committee has reviewed the Internal Audit procedures, findings 
and status of implementation of the agreed action plan.  

DETAILS OF SIGNIFICANT CHANGES(I.E. CHANGES OF 25% OR MORE AS COMPARED 
TO THE IMMEDIATELY PREVIOUS FINANCIAL YEAR) IN KEY FINANCIAL RATIOS, 
ALOGWITH DETAILED EXPLANATION THEREOF 
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Ratios 2021-2022 2020-2021 % Change 
Debtors Turnover 0.12 0.08 -0.04 
Inventory Turnover 2.63 3.31 0.68 
Interest Coverage Ratio 0.00 0.00 0.00 
Current  Ratio 1.02 0.78 0.24 
Debt Equity Ratio 6.01 22.12 -16.11 
Operating Profit 

Margin(%) 
2.44 -16.75 - 

Net Profit Margin (%) 38.30 -898.61 -104.26 
Net Worth 847.99 235.16 - 
Return on net worth 113.16 -169.99 - 
 

DETAILS OF ANY CHANGES IN RETURN ON NET WORTHAS COMPARED TO THE 
IMMEDIATELY PREVIOUS FINANCIAL YAER ALONG WITH A DETAILED 
EXPLANATION THEREOF 

The company has incurred profit 612.84 lacs for the Financial year 2021-2022 as compared to net loss of 
Rs.(2663.97) for the previous financial year 2020-2021. In the current year,the return on Networth of the 
company is 113.16 compared to -169.99 in the previous year. 

CAUTIONARY STATEMENT 

Statements in the Management Discussion and Analysis Report, describing the Company’s objectives, 
projections and estimates, are forward-looking statements and progressive within the meaning of 
applicable securities laws and regulations. Actual results may differ materially from those expressed in 
the statement. Important factors that could influence the Company’s operations include global and 
domestic demand and supply conditions affecting selling prices, input availability and prices, changes in 
government regulations, tax laws, economic developments within the country and other factors such as 
litigation and industrial relations. 

 

On behalf of the Board of Directors, 
For Tarapur Transformers Limited 
 
 
 
 
 
Sd/- 
 Suresh More 
 DIN: 06873425 
Chairman                           
Mumbai, 01st September, 2022 
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Annexure 5 
 

REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 
(Pursuant to Regulation 34 (3) of SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosures Requirements) 

Regulations, 2015) 
Corporate Governance is the application of best management practices, compliance of laws and 
adherence to ethical standards to achieve the Company’s objective of maximizing stakeholders’ value 
and discharge of social responsibility. The Corporate Governance structure in the Company assigns 
responsibilities and entrusts authority among different participants in the organization viz. the Board of 
Directors, the Senior Management, Employees etc.  
In addition to these, the Company has also adopted the requirements of Corporate Governance under 
Regulation 34 of SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosures Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the 
disclosure requirements of which are given below: 

i. Company’s Philosophy on Corporate Governance: 
 The Company’s philosophy on Corporate Governance is to observe the highest level of ethics in 

all its dealings, to ensure the efficient conduct of the affairs of the Company to achieve its goal 
of maximizing value for all its stakeholders. 

 
ii. Board of Directors (Board): 

a) Board Composition: 
The Board of the Company should consist of optimum combination of Executive, Non 
Executive – Independent Directors, which should be in conformity with the requirement of 
Regulation 17 of SEBI (Listing Obligation & Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.  
The present strength of the Board is Six (6) Directors, comprising of one Managing 
Director- Executive Director and Three Independent - Non Executive Directors and two 
Non-executive - Non-Independent Director. The Board Members possess the skills, 
expertise & experience necessary to guide the Company. 
Name of Director Category of Directorship Designation 
Mr. Suresh Sakharam More Executive Director Managing Director 
Ms. Kiren Shrivastav (resigned 
w.e.f 02nd May, 2022) 

Non Executive  - Independent 
Director 

Director 

Mr. Michael Elias Dalmet. 
Appointed as an additional 
director (w.e.f. 1st July, 2022) 

Non Executive - Independent 
Director 

Additional 
Director 

Ms. Reena Omprakash Trivedi. 
Appointed as an additional 
director (w.e.f 21st July, 2022) 

Non Executive – 
Independent Director 

Additional 
Director 
 

Mr. RajendrakumarChoudhary Non-Independent-Non 
Executive Director 

Director 

Mr. SureshkumarChoudhary Non-Executive - Non-
Independent Director 

Director 

Mr. AnilMahabir Gupta Non-Executive- Independent 
Director 

Director 

Mr. Lalit Laxiram Agarwal Independent – Non Director 
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(Demise on 04th September, 
2021) 

Executive 

  
b) Board Meetings and attendance of Directors: 

During the financial year ended on 31st March, 2021. Ten(10) Board Meetings were held on 
the following dates: 
21st April, 2021 ; 29th June, 2021 ; 12th August, 2021 ; 25th August, 2021 ; 8th September, 
2021 ; 04th October, 2021 ; 12th November, 2021 ; 27th December, 2021 ; 01st January, 2022 
; 11th February, 2022. 

                     Independent Director Meeting held on 18th August, 2021.  
 
Agenda papers containing all necessary information / documents are made available to the 
Board in advance to enable the Board members to discharge their responsibilities 
effectively and take informed decisions. Where it is not practicable to attach or send the 
relevant information as part of agenda papers, the same are tabled at the meeting or / and 
the presentations are made by the concerned managers to the Board. Considerable time is 
spent by the Directors on discussions and deliberations at the Board Meetings. 
The attendance at the Board Meetings held during the year and attendance at the last 
Annual General Meeting, number of directorships in other Public Limited Companies and 
membership/ chairmanship in committees across various Companies of which the Director 
is a Member / Chairman are given below: 

 
 
Name of 
Directors 

No. of 
Board 
Meetings 
Attended 
during the 
financial 
year ended 
31st March, 
2022 

 

Attendance 
at last 
AGM held 
on 
22.09.2021 

Directorship 
held  
in other Companies 
and Category of 
Directorship 
(Excluding Private 
Companies and 
Companies under 
Section 8 of the 
Companies Act, 
2013.) 
 

Committee 
Memberships / 
Chairmanships 
(including this 
Company) 

 

Membe
rship 

Chairma
nship 

Mr. 
Suresh 
Sakharam 
More 

10 Yes  
‐ Bil Energy 

Systems 
Limited  
(Non-Executive 
&  Independent  
Director) 

 

3 0 

Mr. 
Michael 
Elias 

1 NO Bil Energy 
Systems 
Limited 

- - 
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Dalmet 
(w.e.f  01st 
January, 
2022 and 
resigned 
w.e.f  
02ndApril,
2022 . 
appointed 
as 
additional 
director 
w.e.f  01st 
july,2022 
) 

(Non-Executive 
& Independent 
Director) 

Ms. Reena 
Omprakas
h Trivedi 
(appointe
d with 
effect 
from 
21stjuly, 
2022) 

- No - - - 

Ms. Kiren 
Shrivastav
(resigned 
w.e.f 02nd 
May, 
2022) 

10 Yes ‐ Bil Energy 
Systems 
Limited  
(Non-Executive 
&  Independent  
Director) 
(resigned w.e.f 
02nd May, 
2022) 

 

3 3 

Mr. 
Rajendrak
umar 
Choudhar
y 

10 Yes ‐ Bil Energy 
Systems Limited 
Executive 
Director 

5 - 

Mr. 
Sureshku
marChoud
hary 

10 Yes ‐ Bil Energy 
Systems 
Limited  

  Non-Executive 
&  Non-
Independent  
Director 

1 - 

Mr. Anil 
Mahabir 

10 Yes - - 3 
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Gupta 
(Appointe
d under 
Committe
e w.e.f 
04th 
October, 
2021) 
Mr. 
Lalit 
Laxira
m 
Agarw
al 
(demis
e on 
04th 
Septe
mber, 
2021) 

4 NO 
‐ Bil Energy 

Systems 
Limited  
(Executive 
Director) 
 

2 3 

 

Note: Under the above table under the head of Committee Memberships / Chairmanships (including 
this Company), we not consider Bilpower Limited as this company is suspended on stock exchange. 
 
The necessary disclosures regarding Committee positions have been made by all the Directors. None 
of the Directors on the Board is a member of more than 10 Committees and chairman of more than 5 
Committees as specified in SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosures Requirements) Regulations, 
2015, across all Companies in which they are Directors. As per SEBI (Listing Obligations & 
Disclosures Requirements) Regulations, 2015, for the purpose of reckoning the said limit, 
chairmanship/ membership of the Audit Committee and the Stakeholders Relationship Committee 
alone shall be considered.  
None of the Directors of the Company are related to each other. 
 
Director retires by rotation: 
Mr. Suresh kumar Choudhary (DIN: 00494510) who retires by rotation and being eligible offers 
himself for re-appointment. 

 
c) Skill/Expertise/Competencies of the Board of Directors: 
The Board of Directors of the company has decades of experience in the respective business 
industry. Directors of the company also possess with significant experience in the field of 
advertising, marketing, public relations through entrepreneurial venture and some of the 
directors is looking after the marketing division. Apart from above, the Board has sound 
knowledge of finance, accounts and laws. 
The Board has identified the following skills/ expertise/ competencies fundamental for the 
effective functioning of the Company which are currently available with the Board: 
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d) In the opinion of the Board of Directors, the Independent Directors of the Company fulfills 

the conditions specified in the Regulation 16(1)(b) and are independent of the management 
and confirmed that has received an declaration from Independent Directors as specified in 
the regulation. 
 

iii. Committees of the Board of Directors of the Company: 
a) Audit Committee: 

Composition: 
  The Audit Committee comprises of experts specializing in accounting / financial 

management. The chairman of the Audit Committee is a “Non-executive Independent 
Director”. The composition of Audit Committee is as follows: 
During the year 2021-22, Five (5) Audit Committee meetings were held on 21st 
April,2021; 29th June,2021; 12th August,2021; 12th November ,2021; 11th February,2022.   
 
 
 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
   The brief terms of reference of the Audit Committee include: – 

 o
v
ersight of the listed entity‘s financial reporting process and the disclosure of its 
financial information to ensure that the financial statement is correct, sufficient 
and credible; To seek information from any employee. 

 recommendation for appointment, remuneration and terms of appointment of 
auditors of the listed entity;  

 approval of payment to statutory auditors for any other services rendered by the 
statutory auditors;  

o matters required to be included in the director‘s responsibility 
statement to be included in the board‘s report in terms of clause (c) of 
sub-section (3) of Section 134 of the    Companies Act, 2013; 

o changes, if any, in accounting policies and practices and reasons for 
the same;  

o major accounting entries involving estimates based on the exercise of 
judgment by  management;  

Name of the 
Members 

Position Category No. of Meetings 
attended 

Mr. Lalit Laxiram 
Agarwal (demise on 
04th September, 
2021) 

Chairman Independent – Non 
Executive 

3 

 Ms. Kiren Shrivastav Member Independent – Non 
Executive 

5 

Mr. Rajendra kumar 
Choudhary 

Member Non-Independent,  
Non Executive 

5 

Mr. Anil Mahabir 
Gupta (Appointed 
under committee w.e.f 
04th October, 2021) 

Chairman Independent – Non 
Executive 

2 
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o significant adjustments made in the financial statements arising out of 
audit findings;  

o compliance with listing and other legal requirements relating to 
financial statements;  

o disclosure of any related party transactions;  
o modified opinion(s) in the draft audit report;  

 Carrying out any other function as is mentioned in the terms of reference of the 
audit committee. 
 

 
b) Nomination and Remuneration Committee: 

   Composition: 
The Nomination and Remuneration Committee comprises of three (3) members. During 
the year 2021-22, Five (5) Nominations and Remuneration Committee meeting was held 
on 29th June, 2021; 12th August, 2021; 12th November, 2021 ; 27th December, 2021 ; 01st  
January, 2022. 
The composition of Nomination and Remuneration Committee is as follows: 

Name of the Members Position Category No. of Meetings attended 
Mr. Lalit Laxiram 
Agarwal (demise on 04th 
September, 2021) 

Chairman Independent – 
Non Executive 

2 

Ms. KirenShrivastav Member Independent – 
Non Executive 

5 

Mr.RajendrakumarChou
dhary 

Member Non-Independent,  
Non Executive 

5 

Mr. Anil Mahabir Gupta 
(Appointed under 
committee w.e.f 04th 
October, 2021) 

Chairman Independent – 
Non Executive 

3 

  
Terms of Reference: 
The broad terms of reference of the committee are to identify persons who are qualified to 
become directors and senior management personnel, to appraise the performance of 
Chairman, Managing Director, Whole Time Directors and Key Managerial Personnel and 
to determine and recommend to the Board compensation payable to Chairman, Managing 
Director, Whole Time Directors and Key Managerial Personnel. The Remuneration policy 
of the Company is based on review of achievements. The remuneration policy is in 
consonance with the existing industry practice. 

 
Remuneration Policy: 
Subject to approval of the Board of Directors and subsequent approval by the members at 
the Annual General Meeting and such authorities as the case may be, remuneration of 
Chairman, Managing Director, Whole Time Directors and Key Managerial Personnel is 
fixed by theNomination and Remuneration Committee. The remuneration is decided by 
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the Nomination and Remuneration Committee taking into consideration various factors 
such as qualifications, experience, expertise, prevailing remuneration in the competitive 
industries, financial position of the Company etc.  
 
Details of Remuneration to the directors for the year: Not Applicable 
 Other Disclosures- 
 Elements of Salary/Remuneration :Not Applicable 
 Fixed components of Remuneration and performance linked incentives along with 
performance criteria: Not Applicable 
 Service Contract, Notice Period, Severance fees: Not Applicable 
 Stock Option Details: Not Applicable 
Remuneration has been paid to Directors of the Company during the year. 
 

c) Stakeholders Relationship Committee: 
Composition: 
 
The Board has delegated the powers to look into various aspects of interest of 
shareholders,debenture holders and other security holder to this Committee of Three (3) 
Directors. During the year 2021-22, Stakeholders Relationship Committee meeting were 
held on  29th June, 2021 ; 12th August, 2021 ; 12th November, 2021 ; 11th February, 
2022. 

Thecomposition of Stakeholders Relationship Committee is as follows: 

Name of the Members Position Category No. of 
Meetings 
attended 

Mr.Lalit Laxiram Agarwal 
(demise on 04th September, 
2021) 

Chairman Independent – 
Non Executive 

2 

Ms.KirenShrivastav Member Independent – 
Non Executive 

4 

Mr.RajendrakumarChoudhary Member Non-Independent,  
Non Executive 

4 

Mr. Anil Mahabir Gupta 
(Appointed under committee 
w.e.f 04th October, 2021) 

Chairman Independent – 
Non Executive 

2 

 
Information on Investor Grievances for the period from 1st April, 2021 to 31st March, 2022: 

 
There are no outstanding complaints at the close of financial year which were received from 
shareholders during the year. The Company has no transfers pending at the close of the financial year. 
The total no. of complaints received and complied during the year were: 
Opening: Nil 
 Received: Nil 
Complied: Nil 
Pending: Nil 
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The Outstanding complaints as on 31st March, 2022 – Nil 
 
Terms of Reference: 
The Company has a Stakeholders Relationship Committee, to look into redressal of 
InvestorsComplaints and requests such as delay in transfer of shares, non-receipt of Dividend, Annual 
Report, revalidation of Dividend warrants etc. 

 
The Committee deals with various matters relating to: 

 Transfer / transmission of shares. 

 Issue of share certificate in lieu of lost, sub-divided, consolidated, rematerialized 
or defaced certificates. 

 Consolidation / splitting of folios. 

 Review of shares dematerialized and all other related matters. 

 Investors’ grievance and redressal mechanism and recommend measures to 
improve the level of investors’ services. 

 Review of measures taken for effective exercise of voting rights by shareholders.  

 Review of adherence to the service standards adopted by the listed entity in 
respect of various services being rendered by the Registrar & Share Transfer 
Agent.  

 Review of the various measures and initiatives taken by the listed entity for 
reducing the quantum of unclaimed dividends and ensuring timely receipt of 
dividend warrants/annual reports/statutory notices by the shareholders of the 
company. 

 
The secretarial department of the Company and Registrar and Share Transfer Agents attend 
expeditiously to all grievances / correspondences of the shareholders and investors, 
received directly or through SEBI, Stock Exchanges, Ministry of Corporate Affairs and 
Registrar of Companies etc. The complaints are generally resolved within 15 days of 
receipt of letter, except in cases that are constrained by disputes or legal impediment. 

 
Compliance Officer: 
Ms. PoojaSoni is the Company Secretary and Compliance Officer of the Company with effect from 
27th December, 2021.  

 
iv) Independent Directors Meeting: 

During the reporting financial year, a separate Meeting of the Independent Directors of the 
Company was held on 18th August, 2021 where at the following items as enumerated under 
Schedule IV to the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 25 of SEBI (LODR) Regulation, 
2015 were set out as the Agenda: 

 To Review the performance of the non-independent directors and the Board as a 
whole; 

 To Review the performance of the chairperson of the Company, taking into account 
the views of executive directors and non-executive directors; 
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 To assess the quality, quantity and timeliness of flow of information between the 
management of the Company and Board. 
 

FamiliarizationProgramme imparted to Independent Director is available on the website of 
the Company (URL: www.tarapurtransformers.com) 
 

v) Code of Conduct and Ethics for Directors and Senior Management: 
The Company has laid down a code of conduct for all Board members and senior management 
personnel of the Company. A copy of the Code of conduct is available on the Company’s 
website www.tarapurtransformers.com. 
The Code has been circulated to all the members of the Board and Senior Management and the 
compliance of the same has been affirmed by them. A declaration signed by the Managing 
Director is given below: 

“I hereby confirm that –  
The Company has obtained from all the members of the Board and Senior Management, 
affirmation that they have complied with the Code of Conduct and Ethics for Directors and 
Senior Management in respect of the Financial Year 2021-22.” 
 
 

 
  
Sd/- 
Mr. Suresh More  
Managing Director 
DIN: 06427436 

 
vi) Detail of the Annual General Meeting of Last three year: 

Details of the last three Annual General Meetings of the Company is given below: 

Financial 
Year 

AG
M 

Date Locations Time No. of 
Special 
Resolutions 
Passed 

2020-2021 33rd 22.09.20
21 

Through Video 
Conferencing (VC) / 
Other Audio Visual 
Means (OAVM) 

12:30 
PM 

2 

2019-20 32nd 30.09.20
20 

Through Video 
Conferencing (VC) / 
Other Audio Visual 
Means (OAVM) 

11.00 
A.M 

2 

2018-19 31st 30.09.20
19 

1st Floor, Landmark 
Building, 
MithChowky, Link 

11.00 
A.M 

- 
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Road, Malad – West, 
Mumbai – 400 064 

 
Details of Special Resolutions passed in the previous three AGMs 
 

Date of AGM Particulars of Special Resolutions passed thereat 

22.09.2021 Appointment of Mr. Anil Mahabir Gupta (DIN:01128035) as an 
Independent Director for a period of five year from 33rd Annual General 
Meeting to 38th Annual General Meeting 

22.09.2021 Re-appointment of Mr. Suresh Sakharam More DIN:(06873425)as a 
Managing Director for a period of five year starting from 12th August, 
2021. 

30.09.2020 Re-appointment of Ms. Kiren Shrivastav DIN: (01078946) as an 
Independent Director for a period of five year starting from 
29thSeptember, 2020 to 28th September, 2025 

30.09.2020 Re-appointment of Mr. Lalit Laxiram Agarwal (DIN: 06427436) as an 
Independent Director for a period of five years from 29th 
Spetember,2020 to 28th September,2025 

 
No resolution was put through Postal Ballot during the year under reference. 
No Extra Ordinary General Meeting of the Company was held during the year. 

 
vii) Other Disclosures 

a) Subsidiary Company: 
 The Company does not have any Subsidiary Company in term of Regulation 24 of SEBI 
(Listing Obligation & Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and hence, it is not 
required to have an independent director of the Company on the Board of such Subsidiary 
Company.  

b) Materially significant related party transactions: 
There were no materially significant related party transactions i.e. transactions of the 
Company of material nature with its promoters, directors or the management, their 
subsidiary or relatives etc. during the year, that may have potential conflict with interest of 
the Company at large.  
The board has approved a policy for related party transactions which has been uploaded on 
the Company’s website at the following link: www.tarapurtrnasformers.com   

c) Statutory Compliance, Penalties and Strictures: 
The Company has complied with all requirements of the Listing Agreements entered with 
Stock Exchanges as well as applicable regulation and guidelines of SEBI. There were no 
strictures or penalties imposed by either SEBI or any Statutory Authorities for non-
compliance of any matter related to the capital markets during the last three years. 
However, the company was levied Fines as per SEBI Circular no. 
SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD/P/2020 dated January, 22 2020 by BSE (Bombay Stock 
Exchange) and NSE (National Stock Exchange) further referred as “The Stock 
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Exchange” in relation to Non- Compliance of following SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 
2015:- 

1) Regulation 17(1) for the Quarter ended 31st December, 2021. 
2) Regulation 27 for the Quarter ended 31st December, 2021. 

Fine amount being :- Rs. 1,67,560/- 

Due to Non-Compliance of aforesaid regulation, the Stock Exchange froze the 
accounts of the Promoters and the waiver has been filed by the company for the 
same. 

Whistle Blower Policy: 
The Board of Directors of the Company has adopted a Whistle Blower Policy for 
establishing a mechanism for employees to report to the management concerns about 
unethical behavior, actual or suspected fraud or violation of the Company’s Code of 
Conduct or ethics policy. The said policy has been posted on the Company’s website. The 
Company affirms that no employee has been denied access to the Audit Committee. 

 
viii) NON-MANDATORY REQUIREMENTS: 

a) Nomination and Remuneration Committee: 
The Board has set up a Nomination and Remuneration Committee. Please see details in 
Para on Nomination and Remuneration Committee. 

b) Shareholder Rights: 
 Company’s quarterly financials are published in English newspaper having a wide 

circulation all over India and in a Marathi newspaper widely circulated in Mumbai. The 
quarterly results and limited review report thereon are also put on the Company’s website 
www.tarapurtransformers.com periodically.  

c) Whistle Blower Policy: 
 The Company has adopted a Whistle Blower Policy. It is also uploaded on Company’s 

website i.e. www.tarapurtransformers.com. 
 

ix) Disclosures in relation to the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, 
Prohibition and Redressal ) Act, 2013: 
a. number of complaints filed during the financial year- Nil 
b. number of complaints disposed of during the financial year-Nil 
c. number of complaints pending as on end of the financial year-Nil 
 

x) Details relating to utilization of IPO Proceeds: 
 During the year, your Company did not raise any funds by way of Public Issues, Rights Issues 
and Preferential Issues, etc. 

xi) Means of Communication: 
Quarterly / Half yearly financial results sent to each 
shareholder’s residence. 

No, but published in the 
newspapers  

In Which Newspapers Quarterly, half yearly & annual 
results were normally Published. 

English:  Active Times 
Marathi: Mumbai Lakshdeep 

49



Any website, where results or official news are 
displayed. 

www.bseindia.com 

www.nseindia.com 

www.tarapurtransformer
s.com 

 
The Board of Directors of the Company approved and took on record the Un-Audited / 
Audited financial results within 45 days and *60 days of quarter / half year respectively and 
communicated the result to the Stock Exchange where the shares of the Company is listed. 
 

a. Whether the Company also displays official News Releases- Not Applicable 
 

b. Presentations made to the institutional investors or to the analysts- Not Applicable 
 
xii) General Shareholder Information: 

a) 34th Annual General Meeting: 

Date 30th September, 2022 

Venue S-105, 1st Floor, Rajiv Gandhi Complex, Ekta Nagar, Kandivali 
(west), Mumbai- 400067. 

Day and 
Time 

Friday, 12:00PM 
 

 
b) Financial Calendar: 

The Company follows the period of 01st April to 31st March, as the Financial Year. 
For the Financial Year 2022-23, Financial Results will be announced as per the 
following tentative schedule.   
*1st Quarter ending June, 2022 By 15thAugust, 2022 
2nd Quarter & Half Year ending 
September, 2022 

By 14th November, 2022 

3rd Quarter ending December, 2022 By 15th February, 2023 
4th Quarter / year ending March, 2023 Within 60 days from 31st March, 2023 
Annual General Meeting for the Year 
2022-23 

By September, 2023 

. 
c) Book Closure: 

Dates of Book 
Closure 

Saturday 24th September, 2022 to Friday 30th September, 
2022 (both days inclusive) 

 
d)  Listing: 

The Shares of the Company are listed on the BSE Limited (BSE) and National Stock 
Exchange of India Limited (NSE).  

e) Listing Fees to Stock Exchanges: 
The Listing Fees for the year 2022-23 is to be paid to both the above exchanges.  

f) Stock Code / Symbol: 
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Bombay Stock Exchange Ltd. (BSE) 533203 
National Stock Exchange of India Ltd. 
(NSE) 

TARAPUR EQ 

International Securities Identification 
Number (ISIN) 

INE747K01017 

Corporate Identity Number (CIN) 
Allotted by the Ministry of Corporate 
Affairs (MCA) 

L99999MH1988PLC047303 

  
g) Stock Market Price Data for the year 2021-22: 

  
  
 Mont
h 

BSE Share Price (Rs.) NSE Share Price (Rs.) 

Ope
n High 

Lo
w 

Clos
e Open 

Hig
h Low Close 

Apr 21 
3.36 

3.79 3.3
6 

3.47 
3.60 

3.70 3.10 3.10 

May 21 
3.47 6.88 3.3

0 
5.96 3.25 6.80 3.00 6.25 

June 21 
5.80 6.40 5.2

6 
5.68 5.95 6.50 5.25 5.45 

July 21 
5.95 6.09 4.6

5 
5.31 5.70 5.90 4.70 5.45 

Aug 21 
5.44 6.26 4.2

7 
4.59 5.45 6.50 4.20 4.40 

Sep 21 
4.55 4.81 3.9

6 
4.07 4.35 4.75 3.85 4.10 

Oct 21 
4.19 4.65 3.7

0 
4.10 4.20 4.55 3.70 3.85 

Nov 21 
3.84 4.23 3.5

5 
4.15 3.85 4.25 3.70 4.20 

Dec 21 
4.15 5.76 3.8

0 
5.60 4.20 5.60 4.00 5.50 

Jan 22 
5.63 7.86 5.0

3 
5.74 5.70 7.80 5.20 5.65 

Feb 22 
5.46 5.80 4.4

1 
4.53 5.40 5.75 4.15 4.40 

Mar 22 
4.53 4.85 

3.9
9 

4.15 
4.55 4.80 3.90 4.05 

Source :www.bseindia.com&www.nseindia.com 
 

h) Registrar and Share Transfer Agent: 
Share transfers, dividend payment and all other investor related matters are attended to 
and processed by our Registrar and Share Transfer Agent, 
Bigshare Services Private Limited 
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E-3, ANSA Industrial Estate Saki Vihar Road, 
Sakinaka, Andheri (E), Mumbai- 400072. 
Tel – 022 62638200 
E mail:info@bigshareonline.com 
 

i) Share Transfer System: 
Pursuant to SEBI press release dated December 3, 2018, except in case of transmission 
or transposition of securities, requests for effecting transfer of securities after April 1, 
2019, have not been processed by the Company unless the securities were held in the 
dematerialized form with a depository. The Company obtains from a Company 
Secretary in practice yearly certificate of compliance with the share transfer formalities 
as required under Regulation 40(9) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and files a copy of the certificate with BSE and NSE.  

 
j) Distribution of Shareholding as on 31st March, 2022: 

 
Range of 
Shareholding 
(Rs.) 

 
Numbe
r of 
Shareh
olders 

 
% of 
Total 

 
Amount 
(Rs.) 

 
% of 
Total 

1 -     5000 9045 77.2549 14210860 7.2876 

5001 -   10000 1298 11.0864 11138960 5.7123 

10001 -   20000 668 5.7055 10500290 5.3848 

20001 -   30000 234 1.9986 6067910 3.1117 

30001 -   40000 96 0.8200 3433830 1.7609 

40001 –   50000 87 0.7431 4086720 2.0958 

50001 -  100000 155 1.3239 11805730 6.0542 

100001 and above 125 1.0676 133755810 68.5927 

Total 11708 100 195000110 100 

 
k) Shareholding pattern (category wise) as on 31st March, 2022: 

Category Total 
Shareholders 

Number of 
Shares held 

% of Total 
Shareholding 

Clearing Member 23 88109 0.45 
Corporate Bodies 77 1424490 7.31 
Corporate Bodies 
(Promoter Co.) 

2 8416460  43.16 

Directors 1 1 0.00 
Group Companies 1 14000 0.07 
Non Resident 
Indians 

58 152072 0.78 

Promoters 2 20 0.00 
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Promoter / Directors 1 272545 1.40 
Public 11542 9132304 46.83 
Relative Of Director 1 10 0.00 
Total 11708 19500011 100.00 

 
l) Dematerialization of shares and liquidity: 

Your Company's shares are traded compulsorily in electronic form and the Company has 
established connectivity with both the depositories. i.e. National Securities Depository 
Limited (NSDL) and Central Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL). 
As on 31st March, 2022, 99.99% of the equity shares have been dematerialized form and 
rest are in physical form. 

m) E-voting 
E-voting is a common internet infrastructure that enables investors to vote electronically 
on resolutions of Companies. The Company will have the E-voting facility for the items 
to be transacted at this AGM. The MCA has authorized NSDL and CDSL for setting up 
electronic platform to facilitate casting of votes in electronic form. The Company has 
entered into agreements with NSDL for providing e-voting facilities to the shareholders. 

n) Outstanding GDR / ADR / Warrants or any convertible instruments, conversion 
date and its impact on equity:   
The Company did not issue any GDRs/ADRs/Warrants or any convertible instruments. 

o) Commodity price risk or foreign exchange risk and hedging activities:Not 
Applicable 

p) Unclaimed Dividend/ Amounts: 
Company does not have any unclaimed dividend amounts. 
 
Plant / Unit locations: 
The Company has the following manufacturing unit – 

PaliUnit :  141, Manor Road, Village Pali, Post- Posheri, Taluka Wada, Dist. 
Thane, Maharashtra.  

 
q) Address for correspondence: 

Registered Office  
S-105, Rajiv Gandhi Complex,  
Ekta Nagar, Kandivali (West),  
Mumbai- 400067  
Tel : 022- 2867 0603/04 
Email id – tarapur.1989@gmail.com 
Website: www.tarapurtansformers.com 
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r) List of all credit rating obtained by the entity along with revisions thereto for all 
debt instruments: 

 Since the entity has not issued any debt instruments or any fixed deposit programme or 
any scheme or any proposal of listed entity involving mobilization of funds whether in 
India or abroad. There is no requirement to obtain the credit ratings including revision by 
the entity 

. 
s) Disclosures on compliance with corporate governance requirements 

The Company has complied with corporate governance requirements specified in 
regulation 17 to 27 and clauses (b) to (i) of sub-regulation (2) of regulation 46 to the 
extent applicable. 

 

However, company has been non-compliant in below Regulation: 
Due to sad demise of our Director Mr. Lalit Laxiram Agarwal on 04th September, 2021; 
company was unable to find the befitting candidate for the subsequent Quarter i.e 
December, 2021; due to which penalty was levied by the Stock Exchange for non-
compliance of Regulation 17(1)(c) of SEBI (LODR)Regulations, 2015. The company has 
taken effective measures to comply with the aforesaid regulation and company appointed 
New Director on 01st January, 2022. 
 
Certificate under Schedule V of SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015. 
 The Company has obtained Certificate from, Practicing Company Secretary confirming 
that Directors have not been debarred or not been disqualified from being appointed or 
continuing as Directors by SEBI/MCA or any other authority forming part of this Annual 
Report as Annexure 6. 
 

On behalf of the Board of Directors, 
 For Tarapur Transformers Limited 
 
 
 
Sd/- 
Mr. Suresh More 
Managing Director 
(DIN: 06873425) 
Mumbai, 01st September, 2022 
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CEO / CFO CERTIFICATION 
 
The Board of Directors 
Tarapur Transformers Limited 
 
We, Suresh Sakharam More, Managing Director and Kanji D. Chavda, Chief Financial Officer of 
Tarapur Transformers Limited, hereby certify to the Board that: 
 
a) We have reviewed financial statements and the cash flow statement for the year ending 31st March, 

2022 and that to the best of our knowledge and belief: 

 These statements do not contain any materially untrue statements or omit any material fact or 
contain statements that might be misleading; 

 These statements together present a true and fair view of the Company’s affairs and are in 
compliance with existing Accounting Standards, applicable Laws and Regulations. 

b)   There are, to the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the Company 
during the year which are fraudulent, illegal or violation of the Company’s code of conduct. 

c)  We are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal controls and we have evaluated the 
effectiveness of the internal control systems of the Company pertaining to financial reporting. We 
have disclosed to the Auditors and the Audit Committee, deficiencies in the design or operation of 
such internal controls, if any, of which we are aware and the steps we have taken or proposed to 
take to rectify these deficiencies. 

d) We have indicated to the Auditors and the Audit Committee: 

 There have been no significant changes in internal control over financial reporting during the 
year; 

 There have been no significant changes in Accounting Policies during the year and the same 
have been disclosed in the notes to the financial statements; and 

e) We certify that there have been no instances of significant frauds of which we have become aware 
and the involvement therein, of management or any employees having significant role in the 
Company’s internal control systems 

f) We affirm that we have not denied any personnel, access to the Audit Committee of the Company 
(in respect of matters involving alleged misconduct). 
 
 

 
Sd/                                      Sd/- 

Suresh More                     Kanji D. Chavda 
Managing Director           Chief Financial Officer 
 
Place: Mumbai 
Dated:01st  September, 2022 
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ANNEXURE- 6 
 

CERTIFICATE OF NON-DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS 
(Pursuant to Regulation 34(3) and Schedule V Para C clause (10)(i) of the SEBI (Listing 

Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015) 
 
 

To, 
The Members of 
Tarapur Transformers Limited 
S-105, Rajiv Gandhi Complex, 
Ekta Nagar, Kandivali (West),  
Mumbai – 400067 
 
Ihave examined the relevant registers, records, forms, returns and disclosures received 
from the Directors of Tarapur Transformers Limited having CIN -
L99999MH1988PLC047303 and having registered office at S-105, Rajiv Gandhi Complex, 
Ekta Nagar, Kandivali (West), Mumbai – 400067(hereinafter referred to as ‘the 
Company’), produced before me by the Company for the purpose of issuing this 
Certificate, in accordance with Regulation 34(3) read with Schedule V Para-C Sub clause 
10(i) of the Securities Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015. 
 
In my opinion and to the best of my information and according to the verifications 
(including Directors Identification Number (DIN) status at the portal www.mca.gov.in) 
as considered necessary and explanations furnished to me by the Company & its 
officers, I hereby certify that none of the Directors on the Board of the Company as 
stated below for the Financial Year ending on 31st March, 2022 have been debarred or 
disqualified from being appointed or continuing as Directors of companies by the 
Securities and Exchange Board of India, Ministry of Corporate Affairs, Maharashtra, 
Mumbai or any such other Statutory Authority. 
 

Sr. 
No. 

Name of Director DIN Date of appointment 
in Company 

1. Mr. Suresh Sakharam More 06873425 30/05/2015 
2. Mr. RajendrakumarAnandilal Choudhary 00494663 30/06/2017 
3. Mr. Michael Elias Dalmet 07240618 01/01/2022 
4. Mr. SureshkumarAnandilal Choudhary 00494510 30/09/2020 
5. Mr. Anil Mahabir Gupta 01128035 30/09/2020 
6. Mrs. Kiren Shrivastav 01078946 13/02/2015 
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Ensuring the eligibility of for the appointment / continuity of every Director on the 
Board is the responsibility of the management of the Company. Our responsibility is to 
express an opinion on these based on our verification. This certificate is neither an 
assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficiency or effectiveness 
with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company. 
 
 
 
 
 
Place: Mumbai     For Bhuwnesh Bansal & Associates 
Date:30th May, 2022 
 

       
   Bhuwnesh Bansal 

Proprietor 
FCS No. – 6526 

CP No. – 9089 
UDIN: F006526D000423305 

Peer Review Certificate No.: 1708/2022 
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AUDITORS CERTIFICATE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT 

 
To, 
The Members of 
Tarapur Transformers Limited 
 
We have examined all the relevant records of Tarapur Transformers Limited (“the Company”) for the 
purpose of certifying compliance of the conditions of the Corporate Governance under Chapter IV to the 
Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 
2015 (Listing Regulations) for the period from April 01, 2021 to March 31, 2022. We have obtained all 
the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the 
purpose of certification. 
 
The compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the Management. Our 
examination was limited to procedures and implementation process adopted by the Company for ensuring 
the compliance of the conditions of the Corporate Governance. This certificate is neither an audit nor an 
expression of opinion on the financial statements of the Company. 
 
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations and information 
furnished to us, we certify that the Company has complied with all the conditions of Corporate 
Governance as stipulated in the said Listing Regulations. 
 
We further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor 
the efficiency or effectiveness with which the Management has conducted the affairs of the Company. 
 
 
 
 
For DALA &KALA ASSOCIATES 
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS 
 
 
 
Sd/- 

 
(CA Rahul Drolia) 
M.NO. 036718 
PARTNER 
Firm Registration No.: 102017W 
UDIN : 22036718AJWUBO8174 
Place: Mumbai, 
Date: 30TH MAY, 2022 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT 
 
TO THE MEMBERS OF  
TARAPUR TRANSFORMERS LIMITED, 
Report on the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements 
 
Opinion 
 
We have audited the accompanying Ind AS Financial Statements of TARAPUR TRANSFORMERS 
LIMITED (“the Company”) which comprises the Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2022, the Statement of 
Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive income), the Statement of Changes in Equity and 
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the Ind AS Financial Statements, 
including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (together 
referred to as ‘Ind AS Financial Statements’). 
 
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the 
aforesaid Ind AS Financial Statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the 
Act’) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting 
principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31st March 2022, and 
its profit including other comprehensive income, the changes in equity and its cash flows for the year 
ended on that date. 
 
Basis for opinion 
 
We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 
143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s 
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements section of our report. We are 
independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit 
of the Ind AS Financial Statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we 
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of 
Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for our opinion. 
 
Key audit matters 
 
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in 
our audit of the financial statements for the financial year ended 31st March 2022. These matters were 
addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole and in forming our 
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. We have determined the 
matters described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our report. 
 
We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the 
financial statements section of our report, including in relation to these matters. Accordingly, our 
audit included the performance of procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the risks of  
material misstatement of the financial statements. The results of our audit procedures, including the 
procedures performed to address the matters below, provide the basis for our opinion on the 
accompanying financial statements. 
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Sr Key Audit Matters Principal Audit Procedures  
1. With regard to pending confirmation of balances 

of trade receivable. 
 
The Company has sent letters to customers in 
respect of trade receivables for confirming 
balances as at March 31, 2022, but in most of the 
cases the customers have not sent written 
confirmation confirming the balance outstanding 
as at March 31, 2022. In the absence of 
confirmation, any provision to be made for 
adverse variation in the carrying amounts of trade 
receivable is not quantified. 
 

The Board considers all outstanding balance of 
customers as on 31st March, 2022 are subject to 
provision. 

2. With regard to unsecured loans given to 
party not covered in the register maintained 
under section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013 

 
The Company has sent balance confirmation 
letters to parties who are not covered in the 
register maintained under section 189 of the 
Companies Act, 2013, but in most of the cases the 
company have not received written confirmation 
confirming the balance outstanding as at March 
31, 2022. Further in respect of loans granted, 
repayment of the principal amount was not as 
stipulated and payment of interest has also not 
been regular. 

Company has received balance confirmation from 
some of the Companies and is vigorously following 
up with the rest of the borrowers. Company expects 
to receive balance confirmation from all the 
companies to whomsoever advances have been 
given. Efforts are made to regularize arrears and 
recovery against overdue principal and interest. 

3. Regarding non provision of interest on various 
loans availed from Canara Bank for the Financial 
year 2021-2022 
 
The Company has not provided for Interest 
payable to Canara Bank amounting to Rs.1778.68 
Lacs for the year ended 31st March 2022. The 
Company has also not made any provision for 
penal interest claimed by the bank. As a result the 
profit for the year ended 31st March 2022 is 
overstated by Rs. 1778.68 Lacs & current liabilities 
as at 31st March, 2022 are also understated by 
Rs.1778.68 Lacs and reserves are overstated by Rs. 
1778.68 Lacs. 
 

Based on the advice received by the 
company, it has been decided not to 
provide any interest on liability of Canara 
Bank. 
 
 
 

4. Loan given includes  interest free unsecured 
loans of Rs. 49.63/- Lacs 
 
The Company has given Interest free 
unsecured loans of Rs. 49.63/- Lacs 
 

Management represents that due to COVID-19 led 
economic instability, the borrowers are going 
through financial issues and have expressed their 
inability to pay interest and hence not provided in 
the books of accounts. 

5. With regarding Physical verification  of 
Inventory: 
 
The company has not conducted periodic 
physical verification of inventory at 
reasonable intervals. 
In respect of traded stock at Mumbai Head Office, 
the details of finished goods stock storage location 
is not available for our verification. 

Management had properly observed the inventory 
at regular intervals. 
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6. 

 
 
With regarding Non Payment of Statutory 
Dues: 

 
The company is not regular in paying the 
Statutory dues regarding Service Tax, GST, Sales 
tax, Professional Tax etc. 

 
 
Company had paid the Statutory dues though some 
of the dues has been delayed because of the financial 
position 

 
 
Information other than the Ind AS Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report thereon 
 
The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information 
comprises the management discussion & analysis and director’s report included in the annual report 
but does not include the Ind AS Financial Statements and our auditor’s report thereon. The above 
information is expected to be made available to us after the date of this auditor’s report. 
 
Our opinion on the Ind AS Financial Statements does not cover the other information and we do not 
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 
 
In connection with our audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements, our responsibility is to read the other 
information identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the other 
information is materially inconsistent with the Ind AS Financial Statements or our knowledge 
obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.  
 
When we read the other information, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, we 
are required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance and make other 
appropriate reporting as prescribed. 
 
Management’s Responsibility for the Ind AS Financial Statements 
 
The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Act 
with respect to the preparation and presentation of the Ind AS Financial Statements that give a true 
and fair view of the financial position, financial performance including cash flows of the Company in 
accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian 
Accounting Standards prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read with relevant rules issued there 
under. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance 
with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and 
detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; 
making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and 
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the 
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of 
the  Ind AS Financial Statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 
 
In preparing the Ind AS Financial Statements, management is responsible for assessing the 
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going 
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to 
liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 
 
Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the company’s financial reporting 
process. 
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Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements 
 
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Ind AS Financial Statements as a 
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s 
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a 
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement 
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, 
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic 
decisions of users taken on the basis of these Ind AS Financial Statements. 
 
As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain 
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

 
 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS financial statements, whether 

due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain 
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not 
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, 
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override 
of internal control. 
 

 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are 
also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal 
financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls. 

 
 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 

estimates and related disclosures made by management. 
 

 Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting 
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events 
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going 
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in 
our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the Ind AS financial statements or, if such 
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit 
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions 
may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern. 
 

 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Ind AS financial statements, 
including the disclosures, and whether the Ind AS financial statements represent the underlying 
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

 
We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned 
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in 
internal control that we identify during our audit. 
 
We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with 
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all 
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and 
where applicable, related safeguards.  
 
From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters 
that were of most significance in the audit of Ind AS financial statements of the current period and are 
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or 
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we 
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determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences 
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such 
communication. 
 
Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 
 
1. As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that: 
 

(a) we have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our 
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid Ind AS 
Financial Statements; 
 

(b) in our opinion proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so 
far as it appears from our examination of those books; 

 
(c) the balance sheet, the statement of profit and loss (including other comprehensive income), 

the statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows are dealt with by this 
Report are in agreement with the books of account; 

 
(d) in our opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS Financial Statements comply with the Accounting 

Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies 
(Accounts) Rules, 2014;  
 

(e) on the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st March 2022 
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31st March 
2022 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;  

 
(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the 

Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in 
“Annexure A”. Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating 
effectiveness of the Company’s internal financial controls over financial reporting;   
 

(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with 
the requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended, in our opinion and to the best of 
our information and according to the explanations given to us, the remuneration paid by the 
Company to its directors during the year is in accordance with the provisions of section 197 of 
the Act; 
 

(h) with respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with 
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of 
our information and according to the explanations given to us: 

 
(i) The company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in 

its financial statements –Refer Note 25 to the financial statements; except for the those 
as mentioned under contingent liabilities and commitments in the Ind AS financial 
statement; 

  
(ii) the Company does not see any foreseeable losses on long-term contracts as on the 

balance sheet date and the Company has not entered into any derivative contracts, 
therefore no provision has been made in relation to the same; 

  
(iii) the Company has not declared any dividends either in the current year or during any 

of the previous years and therefore transferring of the amounts in the Investor 
Education and Protection Fund by the Company does not arise. 
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2. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”) issued by the Central 

Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in “Annexure B” a statement on the 
matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order. 

 
 
For DALAL & KALA ASSOCIATES 
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS 
 
 
 
(CA Anand Drolia) 
M.No.036718 
PARTNER 
Firm Registration No.: 102017W 
Place: Mumbai, 
Date:  May 30, 2022 
UDIN : 22036718AJWUBO8174 
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ANNEXURE “A” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT  
 
(Referred to in paragraph 1(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ of our 
report of even date) 
 
Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under Clause (i) of Sub-section 
3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) 
 
We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of TARAPUR 
TRANSFORMERS LIMITED (“the Company”) as of 31st March 2022 in conjunction with our audit of the 
Ind AS Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended on that date. 
 
Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 
 
The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial 
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company 
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of 
Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants 
of India (ICAI). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of 
adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and 
efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its 
assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the 
accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the 
Companies Act, 2013. 
 
Auditor’s Responsibility 
 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial 
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on 
Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) issued by the 
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and the Standards on Auditing prescribed under Section 
143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. 
Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan 
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial 
controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated 
effectively in all material respects. 
 
Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the 
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit 
of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal 
financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and 
testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed 
risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the 
risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS Financial Statements, whether due to fraud or error.  
 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 
for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting. 
 
Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 
 
A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide 
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of Ind AS 
Financial Statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting 
principles. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and 
procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and 
fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable 66



 

assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of  Ind AS Financial 
Statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and 
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management 
and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely 
detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a 
material effect on the  Ind AS Financial Statements. 
 
Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 
 
Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the 
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to 
error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal 
financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal 
financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or 
that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. 
 
Opinion 
 
According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our audit, the following weaknesses 
have been identified as at March 31, 2022. 

a) The Company did not have an appropriate internal control system for inventory with regard to periodic 
verification of stock.  

In our opinion, except for the possible effects of the weakness described above the Company has, in all material 
respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial 
controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2022, based on the internal control 
over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal 
control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by 
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India 
 
For DALAL & KALA ASSOCIATES 
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS 
 
 
 
(CA Anand Drolia) 
M.No.036718 
PARTNER 
Firm Registration No.: 102017W 
Place: Mumbai, 
Date:  May 30, 2022 
UDIN : 22036718AJWUBO8174 
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ANNEXURE “B” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT  
 
(Referred to in paragraph 2 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ of our 
report of even date) 
 
Report on the statement on the matters specified in the paragraph 3 and 4 of the Companies 
(Auditor's Report) Order, 2020:  
 
(i) (a) (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including 

quantitative details and situation of property, plant & equipment. 
(a) (B) The Company does not have any intangible assets. 

 
(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our 
examination of the records of the Company, the Company does not have a regular programme 
of physical verification of its property. In our opinion, there should be a programme of 
physical verification having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets.  

 
(c) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our 
examination of the records of the Company, the title deeds of immovable properties as 
disclosed in the financial statements are held in the name of the Company except on unit 
located at Baroda wherein the business was purchased several years ago from Manjulata 
Choudhary, however the ownership title of the immovable property was not transferred in the 
name of the company. The Company is in the process of getting the title transferred in its 
name 
 
(d) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our 
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not revalued its property, plant 
and equipment during the year. 
 
(e) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our 
examination of the records of the Company, there are no proceedings initiated or pending 
against the Company for holding any benami property under the Prohibition of Benami 
Property Transactions Act, 1988 and rules made thereunder. 

 
(ii) (a) The inventory has not been physically verified by the management at reasonable intervals 

during the year. In respect of traded stock at Mumbai Head Office, the details of traded stock 
storage location is not available for our verification. 

 
(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our 
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has been sanctioned working 
capital limits in excess of five crore rupees, in aggregate, from banks on the basis of security of 
current assets. However, these limits from the banks have become NPA in 2013 and since then 
no statements are being filed with the banks. 
 

(iii) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our 
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has made investments, provided 
guarantee or security, granted loans or advances in the nature of loans to companies, firms, or 
any other parties during the year.  
 
(a)  According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the audit 
procedures conducted by us, in our opinion the investment made, guarantees provided, 
security given during the year and the terms and conditions of the loans given and guarantees 
provided during the year are, prima facie, not prejudicial to the interest of the Company. 
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(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our 
examination of the records of the Company, in the case of loans given, in our opinion the 
repayment of principal and payment of interest has been stipulated and the repayments or 
receipts have not been regular. 
 
(c) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our 
examination of the records of the Company, there are overdue amounts for more than ninety 
days in respect of loans given or advances made in nature of loan.  The details are as under: 
 

LOANS AND ADVANCES AMOUNT Within 90days Above 90 Days 
Choudhary Global Limited 74,023,656.00 7,925,000.00 66,098,656.00 
Veedhata towers pvt. Ltd 52,164,500.00 3,525,000.00 48,639,500.00 
Abhishek Ramesh Vyas 12,199,160.00   12,199,160.00 
Anita Khemka 1,784,055.00   1,784,055.00 
Aryavart Chemicals 5,000,000.00   5,000,000.00 
Asmi Developers 14,836,246.00 1,112,400.00 13,723,846.00 
Asmi Realtors (Ajay Dedhia) 1,336,947.00 54,000.00 1,282,947.00 
Bairagra Builders Pvt. Ltd. 26,813,500.00   26,813,500.00 
Dataway Solutions Pvt. Ltd 2,500,000.00   2,500,000.00 
Kena Alloys Pvt. Ltd. 6,280,874.00   6,280,874.00 
Laxmikant N. Trivedi 7,838,085.00   7,838,085.00 
Lorraine Finanace pvt. Ltd 51,343,355.80 8,202,403.00 43,140,952.80 
MMM Traders 1,204,053.00   1,204,053.00 
Shakti Bio Science Ltd. 1,800,000.00   1,800,000.00 
Subhang Trading Pvt. Ltd. 700,000.00   700,000.00 
Supreme Freightway Carriers 1,191,391.00   1,191,391.00 
Swathi sunsource Power Pvt. Ltd. 4,640,522.00   4,640,522.00 
Swati V Jain 4,963,750.00   4,963,750.00 
Tapsya Textiles Pvt Ltd 17,040,017.00   17,040,017.00 
Unisource Sysnergies Pvt. Ltd. 4,063,836.00   4,063,836.00 
Usha Vimal Agarwal 3,719,744.00   3,719,744.00 
Vansh Auto Logisti 3,610,013.00 300,000.00 3,310,013.00 
Vineet Jain 2,400,000.00   2,400,000.00 

Staff Advances 848,996.00 622,007.00 226,989.00 
J U Electro Systems limited 1,682,963.29 204,297.80 1,478,665.49 
R.V.Shah 934,640.71   934,640.71 
Transformers & Rectifiers (India ) Ltd 173,040.00   173,040.00 
Prashant Pandit 59,000.00   59,000.00 
Lamcotech SRL 5,027,400.00   5,027,400.00 
  310,179,744.80 21,945,107.80 288,234,637.00 

 
(d) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our 
examination of the records of the Company, there is no loan given falling due during the year, 
which has been renewed or extended or fresh loans given to settle the overdues of existing 
loans given to the same party. 
 
(e) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our 
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not given any loans either 
repayable on demand or without specifying any terms or period of repayment. 

 
(iv) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our 

examination of the records of the company, in respect of investments made and loans, 
guarantees and security given by the Company, in our opinion the provisions of Sections 185 
and 186 of the Act have been complied with. 
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(v) The Company has not accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits 
from the public. Accordingly, clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable. 

 
(vi) We have broadly reviewed the books of accounts maintained by the company pursuant to the 

rules prescribed by the Central Government for maintenance of cost records under section 
148(1) of the Act and are of the opinion that prima facie, the prescribed accounts and records 
have been made and maintained. However, we have not carried out a detailed examination of 
the records with a view to determine whether these are accurate or complete. 

 
(vii) (a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our 

examination of the records of the Company, in our opinion amounts deducted/ accrued in the 
books of account in respect of undisputed statutory dues including Goods and Services Tax 
(‘GST’), Provident fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income-tax, Duty of Customs, Cess and 
other statutory dues have generally been regularly deposited with the appropriate authorities, 
though there have been slight delay in a few cases of GST, Provident fund, Employees’ State 
Insurance and Income-tax. 
 
According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our 
examination of the records of the company, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of GST, 
Provident fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income-tax, Duty of Customs, Cess and other 
statutory dues applicable for a period of more than six months from the date they became 
payable. 

 
(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our 
examination of the records of the company, statutory dues relating to GST, Provident fund, 
Employees’ State Insurance, Income-tax, Duty of Customs, Cess or other statutory which have 
not been deposited on account of any dispute are as follows:  
 

(a)  Following are the dues which are due since more than six months but still not paid or paid at later dates. 
 

 
Nature of Statute 
 

 
Natures of 
Dues 

Amount (Rs. in  
Lacs) 

Period to which 
the amount relates 

 
Date of Payment 

Central Sales Tax Act  CST 0.27 F.Y.2013-14 Still not paid 
Central Sales Tax Act  CST 22.22 F.Y.2016-17 Still not paid 
Goods and Service Tax SGST 0.22 F.Y. 2021-22 Paid on 19 April 2022 
Goods and Service Tax CGST 0.22 F.Y. 2021-22 Paid on 19 April 2022 
Income Tax  TDS 1.40 F.Y. 2021-22 Paid on April 2022 

 
 b) According to the records of the Company Income-Tax and Sales Tax which have not been deposited 

on account of disputes and the Forum where the dispute is pending are as under: 
 

Nature of Statute Financial Year Nature of Dues Pending Amount    
(Rs. in  Lacs) 

Forum Where  
Dispute is 
pending 

Sales Tax Act 
 

F.Y. 2007-2008  Sales Tax Demands 
pending in appeals 

55.32 D.C. APPEAL - 
PALGHAR 

Sales Tax Act 
 

F.Y. 2008-2009  Sales Tax Demands 
pending in appeals 

134.54 D.C. APPEAL - 
PALGHAR 

Sales Tax Act F.Y. 2011-2012 Sales Tax Demands 
pending in appeals 

40.95  D.C. APPEAL - 
PALGHAR 
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Sales Tax Act F.Y. 2013-2014 Sales Tax Demands 
pending in appeals 

60.46 D.C. APPEAL - 
PALGHAR 

Sales Tax Act F.Y. 2015-2016 Sales Tax Demands 
pending in appeals 

2.41 D.C. APPEAL – 
PALGHAR 

Sales Tax Act F.Y. 2016-2017 Sales Tax Demands 
pending in appeals 

48.27 D.C. APPEAL – 
PALGHAR 

Income Tax Act F.Y.      2010-
2011  
F.Y. 2011-2012 
 
F.Y. 2018-2019 

Income Tax Demands 
including interest which is 
under dispute and 
pending in appeals 

7.31 
 
61.73  
 
30.36 

U/s 154 
 
CIT APPEAL -II  
, FILED 
143(1)ITC 

 
(c)  Based on our Audit Procedures and as per the information and explanation given by management, the 
company has defaulted in repayment of dues to banks. The detail of period and amount of default as 
ascertained by management is as follows: 
 

Name of the Bank Nature of dues Amount (Rs. Lacs) Due Date Date of Payment 
Canara Bank Cash Credit facility, 

Over Draft facility 
and Interest  

8481.52 Various Dates Not paid 

 
(viii) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our 

examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not surrendered or disclosed 
any transactions, previously unrecorded as income in the books of account, in the tax 
assessments under the Income-tax Act, 1961 as income during the year. 
 

(ix) (a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our 
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of 
loans and borrowing or in the payment of interest thereon to any lender. 
 
(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis 
of our examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not been declared a 
wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or government authority. 
 
(c) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us by the 
management, term loan were applied for the purpose for which the loan were obtained. 
 
(d) According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall 
examination of the balance sheet of the Company, we report that no funds raised on short 
term basis have been used for long term purposes by the company.  
 
(e) According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall 
examination of the financial statement of the Company, we report that the company has not 
taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its 
subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures as defined under the Act. 
 
(f)  According to the information and explanations given to us and procedure performed by 
us, we report that company has not raised loan during the year on the pledge of securities 
held in its subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures. 

  
(x) (a) The Company has not raised any moneys by way of initial public offer or by further public 

offer (including debt instruments). Accordingly, clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable. 
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(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis 
of our examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not made any 
preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures 
during the year. Accordingly, clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable. 

 
(xi) (a) Based on examination of the books and records of the Company and according to the 

information and explanations given to us, no fraud by the Company or on the Company has 
been noticed or reported during the course of the audit. 
 
(b) No report under sub-section (12) of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 has been filed 
by the auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under Rule 13 of Companies (Audit and 
Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government. 
 
(c) As represented to us by the management, there are no whistle blower complaints received 
by the Company during the year. According to the information and explanations given to us, 
no material fraud by or on the Company by its officers or employees has been noticed or 
reported during the course of our audit. 
 

(xii) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a Nidhi 
Company. Accordingly, clause 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable.  

 
(xiii) In our opinion and according to the information and the explanations given to us, the 

transactions with the related parties were in compliance with Sec 177 and 188 of the 
Companies Act, where applicable and the details of the same have been disclosed in the Ind 
AS Financial Statements as required by the applicable accounting standard.   
 

(xiv) (a) Based on information and explanations provided to us and our audit procedures, in our 
opinion, the Company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of 
its business. 
 
(b) We have considered the internal audit reports of the Company issued till date for the 
period under audit. 

 
(xv) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company 

has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected to its 
directors and hence, provisions of Section 192 of the Companies Act are not applicable to the 
Company. 

 
(xvi) (a) The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of 

India Act, 1934. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(a) of the Order is not applicable. 
 
(b) The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of 
India Act, 1934. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(b) of the Order is not applicable. 

 
(c) The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made 
by the Reserve Bank of India.  Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(c) of the Order is not applicable. 

 
(d) The Company is not part of any group (as per the provisions of the Core Investment 
Companies Directions, 2016 as amended). Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(d) of the Order is not 
applicable. 
 

(xvii) The Company has not incurred cash losses in the current and in the immediately preceding 
financial year. 
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(xviii) There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. Accordingly, clause 
3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable. 
 

(xix) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial 
ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financial 
liabilities, other information accompanying the  financial statements, our knowledge of the 
Board of Directors and management plans and based on our examination of the evidence 
supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe 
that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that the Company is not 
capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due 
within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an 
assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is 
based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any 
assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, 
will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due. 

 
(xx) The requirement as stipulated by the provision of section 135 are not applicable to the 

company. Accordingly, clauses 3(xx)(a) and 3(xx)(b) of the Order are not applicable. 
 
 

For DALAL & KALA ASSOCIATES 
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS 
 
 
 
(CA Anand Drolia) 
M.No.036718 
PARTNER 
Firm Registration No.: 102017W 
Place: Mumbai, 
Date:   
UDIN : 22036718AJWUBO8174  
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                 (` in Lacs)

PERTICULARS NOTE NO AS AT 31ST MARCH 2022 AS AT 31ST MARCH 2021

` `

I ASSETS
Non-Current Assets

a) Property, Plant and Equipment 2 665.58 1242.27

b) Other Intangible Assets 2 -                          -                          

c) Financial Asset

i)Other Non Current Financial Asset -                          -                          

c) Other Non-Current Assets 3 61.86 105.27

Total Non-Current Assets 727.44 1347.54

Current Assets

a) Inventories 4 28.28                       84.68                       

b) Financial Assets

i) Current Investments 5 88.92 115.70

ii) Trade Receivables 6 2614.46 1649.95

iii) Cash and Cash Equivalents 7 9.62 7.87

iv) Other Bank Balances 8 193.31 187.80

c) Other Current Assets 9 2285.78 1807.16

Total Current Assets 5220.37 3853.16

Total Assets 5947.81 5200.70

II EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Equity

a) Equity Share Capital 10 1950.00 1950.00

b) Other Equity 11 (1102.01) (1714.85)

Total Equity 847.99 235.15

Liabilities

Non-Current Liabilities

a) Financial Liabilities

i) Other Non-Current Financial Liabilities 12 -                          -                          

Total Non-Current Liabilities -                          -                          

Current Liabilities

a) Financial Liabilities

i) Trade Payables 13 124.43 205.75

ii) Other Current Financial Liabilities 14 3555.62 3216.29

b) Other Current Liabilities 15 1419.77 1543.51

Total Current Liabilities 5099.82 4965.55

Ttoal Equity and Liabilities 5947.81 5200.70

-                              -                              
Significant Accounting Policies 1

As per our attached report of even date.

For Dalal & Kala Associates For and on bahalf of the Board
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn.No. 102017W

Pooja Soni Suresh More
Company Secretary Managing Director

Din : 06873425

Anand Drolia Kanji Chavda Rajendra Kumar Choudhary
Partner                                                                                 Chief Finance Officer Director
Membership No. 036718                                             Din : 00494663
Mumbai: 30th May 2022 Mumbai: 30th May 2022

TARAPUR TRANSFORMERS LIMITED
BALANCE SHEET AS AT - 31ST MARCH 2022                                                                                                            
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 (` in Lacs)

NOTE NO AS AT 31ST MARCH 2022 AS AT 31ST MARCH 2021

` `

INCOME

Revenue From Operations(Net) 16 253.44 159.01
Other Income 17 1346.65 137.45

1600.09 296.46

EXPENSES

Cost of Materials Consumed 18 148.50                     140.10                     
Stock-in-Trade Purchases 19 -                              -                              
Change in Inventories 20 -                              -                              
Employee Benefits Expenses 21 41.62 18.71
Finance Costs 22 6.40 1.16
Depreciation and Amortisation Expenses 2 113.46 118.36
Other Expenses 23 677.27 2682.10

987.25 2960.43

Profit/(Loss) Before Exceptional Items and Tax 612.84 (2663.97)

Exceptional Items -                              -                              

Profit/(Loss) Before Tax 612.84 (2663.97)

Extraordinary Items -                              -                              

Profit/(Loss) Before Tax 612.84 (2663.97)

Tax Expenses
Current Tax -                              -                              
Deferred Tax -                              -                              
Income Tax Earlier Years -                              -                              

-                          -                          

Profit/(Loss) For The Period From Continuing Operations 612.84 (2663.97)

Profit/(Loss) For The Period From Discomtomning Operations -                              -                              

Tax Expense of Discontinuing Operations -                              -                              

Profit/(Loss) From Discontinuing Operations(After Tax) -                              -                              

Profit/(Loss) for The Pperiod 612.84 (2663.97)

Nos of Equity Shares for Computing EPS

Basic 19500011 19500011
Diluted 19500011 19500011

EarningS per Equity Share (Face Value ` 10/- Per Share)
Basic ( ` ) 3.14                         (13.66)                      
Diluted (` ) 3.14                         (13.66)                      

Significant Accounting Policies 1

As per our attached report of even date.

For Dalal & Kala Associates For and on bahalf of the Board
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn.No. 102017W

Pooja Soni Suresh More
Company Secretary Managing Director

Din : 06873425

Anand Drolia Kanji Chavda Rajendra Kumar Choudhary
Partner                                                                                   Chief Finance Officer Director
Membership No. 036718                                             Din : 00494663
Mumbai: 30th May 2022 Mumbai: 30th May 2022

TARAPUR TRANSFORMERS LIMITED
STATEMENT OF PROFIT &  LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED - 31ST MARCH 2022
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED  31ST MARCH, 2022 (` in Lacs)
AS AT 31ST MARCH 2022 AS AT 31ST MARCH 2021

` `

A. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net Profit Before Tax & Extra Ordinary Items 612.84                     (2,663.97)                 
Adjustment For -
- Depreciation 113.46                     118.36                     
- Impairment Loss 454.56                     -                              
- Other Provision Written Back (149.88)                   674.47                     
- Balance Written off 33.28                       (6.31)                       
- Loss/(Profit) On Foreign Currency Fluctuation 1.14                        (1.95)                       
- Liquidated Damages (Penalty) -                              (3.85)                       
- Gain on Sales of Assets (65.48)                     (37.33)                      
- Provision for Doubtful Debts -                              789.27                     
- Provision for Loans and Advances 87.24                       750.08                     
- Dimunition in Value of Quoted Investments 26.78                       348.44                     
- Interest Income (252.66)                   (38.81)                      
- Interest Paid 5.10                        -                              
OPERATING PROFIT BEFORE WORKING CAPITAL CHANGES 866.38                     (71.60)                      
Adjustment For -
- Trade Receivable (964.51)                   42.98                       
- Inventories 56.39                       (84.68)                      
- Trade and Other Payables (89.58)                     43.59                       
Cash Generated from Operations (131.32)                   (69.70)                      

Decrease in Provision for Taxation -                              -                              
CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES (131.32)                   (69.70)                      

B. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of Fixed Assets -                              -                              
Sale of Fixed Assets 74.15                       65.05                       
Investment in Shares -                              -                              
Interest Income 252.66                     38.81                       
Movement in Loans and Advances (522.45)                   (30.35)                      
Dividend on Long Term Investment -                              -                              
Net Cash Used in Investing Activities (195.64)                   73.51                       

C. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Long Term Borrowing -                              -                              
Short Term Borrowing 339.33                     (4.55)                       
Interest Paid (5.11)                       -                              
NET CASH FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES 334.22                     (4.55)                       

Net Increase / (Decrease) In Cash And Cash Equivalents 7.26                        (0.74)                       
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENT AT BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 195.67                     196.42                     
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENT AT THE END OF THE YEAR 202.93                     195.67                     

NOTES: 1. All figures in brackets are outflow. (109244773.74)
2. Previous year's figures have been regrouped wherever necessary.
3. Cash and Cash Equivalent is Cash & Bank Balances as per Balance Sheet. 

As per our attached report of even date.

For Dalal & Kala Associates For and on bahalf of the Board
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn.No. 102017W

                                                Pooja Soni Suresh More
Company Secretary Managing Director

Din : 06873425

Anand Drolia                                                     Kanji Chavda Rajendra Kumar Choudhary
Partner                                                                          Chief Finance Officer Director
Membership No. 036718                                             Din : 00494663
Mumbai: 30th May, 2022 Mumbai: 30th May, 2022

TARAPUR TRANSFORMERS LTD
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TARAPUR TRANSFORMERS LTD
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED  31ST  MARCH, 2022

A. EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL (REFER NOTE 10)

Balance as at      
1 April 2021

Changes in 
Equity Share 
Capital During 
the year

Balance as at 31 
March 2022

(` in Lacs) (` in Lacs) (` in Lacs)

Authorised 2500.00 -                           2500.00
Issued 1950.00 -                           1950.00
Subscribed & Paid up 1950.00 -                           1950.00

B. OTHER EQUITY (REFER NOTE 11)

Particulars

Securities 
Premium 
Account Capital Reserve General Reserve

Retained 
Earnings

Total Other 
Equity

(` in Lacs) (` in Lacs) (` in Lacs) (` in Lacs) (` in Lacs)

As at 1 April 2020 6042.22 22.71 279.92 (5395.73) 949.12
Profit for the year -                       -                        -                        (2663.97) (2663.97)
Other Comprehensive Income/(Loss) (Net of Tax) -                       -                        -                        -                           -                          
Total Comprehensive Income / (Loss) -                       -                        -                        (2663.97) (2663.97)
Exercised Stock Options -                       -                        -                        -                           -                          
Share Based Payment Expenses -                       -                        -                        -                           -                          
Dividend Paid -                       -                        -                        -                           -                          
Dividend Distribution Tax -                       -                        -                        -                           -                          
As at 31 March 2021 6042.22 22.71 279.92 (8059.70) (1714.85)
Profit for the year -                       -                        -                        612.84 612.84
Other Comprehensive Income/(Loss) (Net of Tax) -                       -                        -                        -                           -                          
Total Comprehensive Income / (Loss) -                       -                        -                        612.84 612.84
Exercised Stock Options -                       -                        -                        -                           -                          
Share Based Payment Expenses -                       -                        -                        -                           -                          
As at 31 March 2022 6042.22 22.71 279.92 (7446.86) (1102.01)

As per our attached report of even date.

For Dalal & Kala Associates For and on bahalf of the Board
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn.No. 102017W

Pooja Soni Suresh More
Company Secretary Managing Director

Din : 06873425

Anand Drolia                                                         Kanji Chavda Rajendra Kumar Choudhary
Partner                                                                      Chief Finance Officer Director
Membership No. 036718                                             Din : 00494663
Mumbai: 30th May, 2022 Mumbai: 30th May, 2022
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 NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2022 
 

1. STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES – 
A. Corporate Information 

Tarapur Transformers Limited (“Company”) is a public limited company incorporated and domiciled in India. Its shares are 
listed on Bombay Stock Exchanges and National Stock Exchange. The Registered office of Company is located at S 105, Rajiv 
Gandhi Commercial Complex, Ekta nagar, Kandivali (W), Mumbai - 400067 
The main activities of the Company are Manufacturing & Repairing, Power & Distribution of Transformers. 
The financial statements for the Company were authorized for issue by Company’s Board of Directors on May 30 2022. 

B. Basis of Preparation 
These financial statements of the Company have been prepared in all material aspects in accordance with Indian Accounting 
Standards (Ind AS) as per rule 4 of The Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 notified under section 133 of 
Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) and other relevant Provisions of the Act. 
These financial statements have been prepared on an accrual basis and under the historical cost basis, except for the following 
assets and liabilities which have been measured at fair value or revalued amount wherever applicable: 
 Derivative financial instruments 
 Certain financial assets measured at fair value  
 Net defined benefit asset/liability at fair value of plan assets less present value of defined benefit obligations. 

C. Current versus non-current classification: 
The assets and liabilities in the balance sheet are presented based on current/non-current classification. 
An asset is current when it is: 
 Expected to be realized or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle, or 
 Held primarily for the purpose of trading, or  
 Expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting period, or 
 Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months after 

the reporting period. 
All other assets are classified as non-current. 
A liability is current when it is: 
 Expected to be settled  in normal operating cycle, or 
 Held primarily for the purpose of trading, or 
 Due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or 
 There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period. 
All other liabilities are treated as non-current. 
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities respectively. 
Operating Cycle 
Based on the nature of products / activities of the Company and the normal time between acquisition of assets and their 
realization in cash or cash equivalents, the Company has determined its operating cycle as 12 months for the purpose of 
classification of its assets and liabilities as current and non-current. 

D. Property, plant and equipment 
Freehold land is carried at historical costs. All other items of property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated 
depreciation and impairment loss, if any. 
Cost includes cost of acquisition, installation or construction, other direct expenses incurred to bring the assets to its working 
condition and finance costs incurred up to the date the asset is ready for its intended use and excludes Goods and Service Tax 
(GST) eligible for credit / setoff. 
Such cost includes the cost of replacing part of the plant and equipment and borrowing costs for long-term construction 
projects if the recognition criteria are met. When significant parts of plant and equipment are required to be replaced at 
intervals, the Company depreciates them separately based on their specific useful lives. Likewise, when a major inspection is 
performed, its cost is recognized in the carrying amount of the plant and equipment as a replacement if the recognition criteria 
are satisfied. All other repair and maintenance costs are recognized in the statement of profit or loss as incurred. 
Capital work-in-progress in respect of assets which are not ready for their intended use are carried at cost, comprising of direct 
costs, related incidental expenses and attributable interest. 
All identifiable revenue expenses including interest incurred in respect of various projects / expansion, net of income earned 
during the project development stage prior to its intended use, are considered as pre – operative expenses and disclosed under 
Capital Work –in–Progress. 
Capital expenditure on Property, Plant and Equipment for research and development is classified under property, plant and 
equipment and is depreciated on the same basis as other property, plant and equipment. 
Property, plant and equipment are eliminated from standalone financial statements, either on disposal or when retired from 
active use. Losses arising in the case of the retirement of property, plant and equipment and gains or losses arising from 
disposal of property, plant and equipment are recognized in the statement of profit and loss in the year of occurrence. 
The company depreciates property, plant and equipment over their estimated useful lives using written down value method. 
The estimated useful lives of assets are as follows: 

Buildings (other than factory buildings) – RCC Frame Structures  60 years 
 Buildings (other than RCC Frame Structure) and Factory Buildings  30 years 
 Other Plant and Machinery      15 years 
 Office equipment         5 years 
 Furniture and Fittings      10 years 
 Computers and data processing units                   3 years 
 Vehicles (motor cars)        8 years 

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed periodically, including at each financial year end. 
Depreciable amount for assets is the cost of an asset, or other amount substituted for cost, less its estimated residual value. 
Depreciation on the property, plant and equipment is provided on straight line method, over the useful life of the assets, as 
specified in Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013. Property, plant and equipment which are added / disposed off during the 
year, depreciation is provided on pro-rata basis. Premium on Leasehold lands are amortized over the period of lease. Buildings 
constructed on leasehold land are depreciated based on the useful life specified in Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013, 
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where the lease period of the land is beyond the life of the building. In other cases, buildings constructed on leasehold lands are 
amortized over the primary lease period of the lands. 
The assets’ residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted 
prospectively, if appropriate. 
An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater 
than its estimated recoverable amount. 

E. Intangible Assets 
Intangible assets are recognized when it is probable that the future economic benefits that are attributable to the assets will flow 
to the Company and the cost of the assets can be measured reliably. 
Intangible assets are stated at cost or acquisition less accumulated amortization and impairment loss, if any. 
Internally generated intangibles, excluding capitalized development costs, are not capitalized and the related expenditure is 
reflected in Statement of profit and loss in the period in which the expenditure is incurred. 
Software is amortized over their estimated useful life on straight line basis from the date they are available for intended use, 
subject to impairment test. 
The amortization period and the amortization method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at the 
end of each reporting period. Changes in the expected useful life or the expected pattern of consumption of future economic 
benefits embodied in the asset are considered to modify the amortization period or method, as appropriate, and are treated as 
changes in accounting estimates. 
Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible assets are measured as the difference between the net disposal 
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognized in the statement of profit and loss when the assets is 
derecognised. 

F. Financial Instruments: 
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity 
instrument of another entity. 

 Financial Assets:  Classification: 
The Company classifies financial assets as subsequently measured at amortized cost, fair value through other comprehensive 
income or fair value through profit or loss, on the basis of its business model for managing the financial assets and the 
contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial asset. 

Initial recognition and measurement: 
All financial assets are recognized initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair value through 
profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. 

Subsequent measurement: 
For the purpose of subsequent measurement financial assets are classified in two broad categories: 
 Financial assets at fair value ( FVTPL / FVTOCI) 
 Financial assets at amortized cost 
When assets are measured at fair value, gains and losses are either recognized in the statement of profit and loss (i.e. fair value 
through profit or loss (FVTPL)), or recognized in other comprehensive income (i.e. fair value through other comprehensive 
income (FVOCI)). 

Financial Assets measured at amortized cost (Net of write down for impairment, if any): 
Financial assets are measured at amortized cost when asset is held within a business model, whose objective is to hold assets 
for collecting contractual cash flows and contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely 
payments of principal and interest. Such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective 
Interest rate (EIR) method less impairment, if any. The losses arising from impairment are recognized in the Statement of profit 
and loss. 

Financial Assets measured at Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income (“FVTOCI”): 
Financial assets under this category are measured initially as well as at each reporting date at fair value, when asset is held 
within a business model, whose objective is to hold assets for both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets. 
Fair value movements are recognized in the other comprehensive income. 

Financial Assets measured at Fair Value through Profit or Loss (“FVTPL”): 
Financial assets under this category are measured initially as well as at each reporting date at fair value with all changes 
recognized in profit or loss. 

Investment in Equity Instruments: 
Equity instruments which are held for trading are classified as at FVTPL. All other equity instruments are classified as FVTOCI. 
Fair value changes on the instrument, excluding dividends, are recognized in the other comprehensive income. There is no 
recycling of the amounts from other comprehensive income to profit or loss. 

Investment in Debt Instruments: 
A debt instrument is measured at amortized cost or at FVTOCI. Any debt instrument, which does not meet the criteria for 
categorization as at amortized cost or as FVOCI, is classified as at FVTPL. Debt instruments included within the FVTPL 
category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized in the Statement of profit and loss. 

Derecognition of Financial Assets: 
A financial asset is primarily derecognized when the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired or the Company 
has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset. 

Impairment of Financial Assets: 
In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for measurement and recognition of 
impairment loss on the financial assets that are debt instruments and trade receivables. 

Financial Liabilities: Classification: 
The Company classifies all financial liabilities as subsequently measured at amortized cost or FVTPL. 

Initial recognition and measurement: 
All financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value and, in the case of loans, borrowings and payables, net of directly 
attributable transaction costs.  
Financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings including bank overdrafts and derivative financial 
instruments. 

 
 
 

79



Subsequent measurement: 
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities 
designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. Interest-bearing loans and borrowings are 
subsequently measured at amortized cost using the Effective Interest Rate (EIR) method. Gains and losses are recognized in 
profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognized as well as through EIR amortization process. Amortized cost is calculated by 
taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR 
amortization is included as finance costs in the statement of profit and loss. 

Derecognition of Financial Liabilities: 
A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an 
existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an 
existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original 
liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the Statement 
of Profit and Loss. 

Derivative Financial Instrument: 
The Company uses derivative financial instruments, such as forward currency contracts to mitigate its foreign currency risks. 
Such derivative financial instruments are initially recognized at fair value on the date on which a derivative contract is entered 
into and are subsequently re-measured at fair value. Derivatives are carried as financial assets when the fair value is positive 
and as financial liabilities when the fair value is negative. 

G. Inventories 
Raw materials and packing materials are valued at lower of cost and the net realizable value, cost of which includes duties and 
taxes (net of Goods and Service Tax (GST) wherever applicable). Cost of imported raw materials and packing materials lying in 
bonded warehouse includes customs duty. Finished products including traded goods and work-in-progress are valued at 
lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost is arrived on moving weighted average basis. 
The cost of Inventories have been computed to include all cost of purchases, cost of conversion, appropriate share of fixed 
production overheads based on normal operating capacity and other related cost incurred in bringing the inventories to their 
present condition. 
Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the estimated costs of completion and 
selling expenses. 
Slow and non-moving material, obsolesces, defective inventory are fully provided for and valued at net realizable value. 
Goods and materials in transit are valued at actual cost incurred up to the date of balance sheet. Materials and other items held 
for use in production of inventories are not written down, if the finished products in which they will be used are expected to be 
sold at or above cost. 

H. Cash And Cash Equivalent 
Cash and Cash Equivalents comprise of cash on hand and cash at bank including fixed deposit/ highly liquid investments with 
original maturity period of three months or less that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to 
an insignificant risk of changes in value. 

I. Cash Flow Statement 
Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby net profit before tax is adjusted for the effects of transactions of a 
non-cash nature, any deferrals or accruals of past or future operating cash receipts or payments and item of income or expenses 
associated with investing or financing cash flows. The cash flow from operating, investing and financing activities of the 
Company are segregated. 

J. Foreign Currency Transactions 
Revenue Transactions denominated in foreign currencies are normally recorded at the exchange rate prevailing on the date of 
the transaction. 
Monetary items denominated in foreign currencies at the year-end are re-measured at the exchange rate prevailing on the 
balance sheet date. Non-monetary foreign currency items are carried at cost. 
Any income or expense on account of exchange difference either on settlement or on restatement is recognized in the Statement 
of Profit and Loss. 

K. Revenue Recognition 
Revenue from sale of goods is recognized, when all significant risks and rewards are transferred to the buyer, as per the terms 
of contracts and no significant uncertainty exists regarding amount of the consideration that will be derived from the sale of 
goods. 
Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the revenue can 
be reliably measured, regardless of when the payment is being made. 
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable. Amount disclosed as revenue are inclusive of 
excise duty, excluding Goods and Service tax (GST) collected on behalf of the government, and net of returns, trade 
discount/allowances, rebates, and amounts collected on behalf of third parties. 
Revenue from sale of technology / know how (rights, licenses and other intangibles) are recognized when performance 
obligation is completed as per the terms of the agreement. Incomes from services are recognized when services are rendered. 
Dividend income is recognized when right to receive dividend is established. Interest income is recognized on time proportion 
basis. Insurance and other claims are recognized as a revenue on certainty of receipt on prudent basis. Export benefits available 
under prevalent schemes are accounted to the extent considered receivable. 

L.  Employee Benefits 
All employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months rendering service are classified as short term employee benefits. 
Benefits such as salaries, wages, short-term compensated absences, performance incentives etc., and the expected cost of bonus, 
ex-gratia are recognized during the period in which the employee renders related service. 

M. Borrowing Costs 
Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that necessarily takes a 
substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalized as part of the cost of the asset. All other 
borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they occur. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an 
entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing cost also includes exchange differences to the extent 
regarded as an adjustment to the borrowing costs. 
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N. Lease 
The determination of whether an arrangement is, or contains, a lease is based on the substance of the arrangement at the 
inception date, whether fulfillment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets or the arrangement 
conveys a right to use the asset, even if that right is not explicitly specified in an arrangement. 
Assets acquired on leases where a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are retained by lessor are classified 
as operating leases. Leases rentals are charged to the statement of profit and loss on straight line basis. 

 
O. Government Grants 

Government grants are initially recognized as deferred income at fair value if there is reasonable assurance that they will be 
received reasonable assurance that they will be received associated with the grant; 
 In case of capital grants, they are then recognized in Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss as other income on a 

systematic basis over the useful life of the asset. 
 In case of grants that compensate the Company for expenses incurred are recognized in Standalone Statement of Profit 

and Loss on a systematic basis in the periods in which the expenses are recognized. 
         Export benefits available under prevalent schemes are accrued in the year in which the goods are exported and there is no 

uncertainty in receiving the same. 
P. Earnings Per Share 

Basic Earnings per equity share is computed by dividing the net profit attributable to the equity holders of the company by the 
weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period. Diluted earnings per equity share is computed by 
dividing the net profit attributable to the equity holders of the company by the weighted average number of equity shares 
considered for deriving basic earnings per equity share and also the weighted average number of equity shares that could have 
been issued upon conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares. The dilutive potential equity shares are adjusted for the 
proceeds receivable had the equity shares been actually issued at fair value. Dilutive potential equity shares are deemed 
converted as of the beginning of the period, unless issued at a later date. Dilutive potential equity shares are determined 
independently for each period presented. 

Q. Income Taxes 
Income tax expense comprises current and deferred income tax. Income tax expense is recognized in net profit in the statement 
of profit and loss except to the extent that it relates to items recognized directly in equity, in which case it is recognized in other 
comprehensive income. Current income tax for current and prior periods is recognized at the amount expected to be paid to or 
recovered from the tax authorities, using the tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted by the balance sheet date. Deferred 
income tax assets and liabilities are recognized for all temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and 
liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and 
are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realized. 
Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are measured using tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively 
enacted by the balance sheet date and are expected to apply to taxable income in the years in which those temporary 
differences are expected to be recovered or settled. The effect of changes in tax rates on deferred income tax assets and liabilities 
is recognized as income or expense in the period that includes the enactment or the substantive enactment date. A deferred 
income tax asset is recognized to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the 
deductible temporary differences and tax losses can be utilized. The company offsets current tax assets and current tax 
liabilities, where it has a legally enforceable right to set off the recognized amounts and where it intends either to settle on a net 
basis, or to realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.  
Minimum Alternate Tax (‘MAT’) credit is recognized as deferred tax asset only when and to the extent there is convincing 
evidence that the Company will pay normal income tax during the period for which the MAT credit can be carried forward for 
set-off against the normal tax liability. MAT credit recognized as an asset is reviewed at each Balance Sheet date and written 
down to the extent the aforesaid convincing evidence no longer exists. 

R. Dividends to Shareholders 
Annual dividend distribution to the shareholders is recognized as a liability in the period in which the dividends are approved 
by the shareholders. Any interim dividend paid is recognized on approval by Board of Directors. Dividend payable and 
corresponding tax on dividend distribution is recognized directly in equity. 

S. Provisions, Contingent Liabilities, Contingent Assets and Commitments General 
Provisions (legal or constructive) are recognized when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result 
of past event and it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation, in respect of which a 
reliable estimate can be made. 
Provisions (excluding retirement benefits and compensated absences) are not discounted to its present value and are 
determined based on best estimate required to settle the obligation at the balance sheet date. These are reviewed at each 
balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates.  
If there is any expectation that some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, the reimbursement is recognized as a separate asset 
but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense relating to a provision is presented in the statement of profit 
and loss net of any virtually certain reimbursement. 
If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects, when 
appropriate, the risk specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time 
is recognized as a finance cost.  
Contingent liability is disclosed in the case of: 
 a present obligation arising from past events, when it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle 

the obligation; 
 a present obligation arising from past events, when no reliable estimates is possible; 
 a possible obligation arising from past events, unless the probability of outflow of resources is remote. 
Contingent liabilities are not recognized in the standalone financial statements. Contingent assets are neither recognized nor 
disclosed in the financial statements. 
Commitments include the amount of purchase order (net of advances) issued to parties for completion of assets and Non-
cancellable operating lease.  
Provisions, contingent liabilities, contingent assets and commitments are reviewed at each balance sheet date 

Asset Retirement Obligation 
Asset retirement obligations (ARO) are provided for those operating lease arrangements where the Company has a binding 
obligation at the end of the lease period to restore the leased premises in a condition similar to inception of lease. ARO are 

81



provided at the present value of expected costs to settle the obligation using discounted cash flows and are recognized as part 
of the cost of that particular asset. The cash flows are discounted at a current pre-tax rate that reflects the risks specific to the 
decommissioning liability. The unwinding of the discount is recognized in the income statement as a finance cost. The 
estimated future costs of decommissioning are reviewed annually and adjusted as appropriate. Changes in the estimated future 
costs or in the discount rate applied are added to or deducted from the cost of the asset. 

 
T. Fair Value Of Financial Instruments 

The Company measures financial instruments at fair value in accordance with the accounting policies mentioned above. Fair 
value is the price that would be received to sell an assets or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market 
participants at the measurement date. In determining the fair value of its financial instruments, the Company uses a variety of 
methods and assumptions that are based on market conditions and risks existing at each reporting date. The methods used to 
determine fair value include discounted cash flow analysis, available quoted market prices and dealer quotes. All methods of 
assessing fair value result in general approximation of value, and such value may never actually be realized.  
For financial assets and liabilities maturing within one year from the balance sheet date and which are not carried at fair value, 
the carrying amounts are more or less equal to the fair value due to the short maturity of these instruments. 

U. Recent accounting pronouncements Standards issued but not yet effective 
The Ministry of Corporate Affairs in March 2018 has re-notified Ind AS 115, Revenue from Contracts with Customers. Earlier, 
this Standard was omitted and two other standards, Ind AS 11, Construction Contracts and Ind AS 18, Revenue had been 
notified in its place. Now, after re-notification of Ind AS 115, Ind AS 11 and Ind AS 18 would be redundant. Ind AS 115 deals 
with recognition of revenue arising from sale of goods, rendering of services, interest, royalties and construction contracts. It is 
a converged form of IFRS 15, Revenue from Contracts with Customers. Ind AS 115 shall be applied from financial years 
beginning on or after 1st April, 2018. 
These amendments are not expected to have any impact on the Company. 

(` in Lacs) 

Particulars  

     Gross  Block         Depreciation   Impairement   Net  
Block  

As at 
1st April 

2021 
 Addition   Deduction/ 

Adjustment  

 As at 
31st 

March 
2022  

 Upto 
1st April 

2021  

Deduction/ 
Adjustment 

 For 
the 

Year  

 As at 
31st 

March 
2022  

AS AT 1ST 
APRIL,2021 

 For 
the 

Year  

 As at 
31st 

March 
2022 

 As at 
31st 

March 
2022  

A) Property, 
Plant and 
Equipment                   

Land (Lease 
Hold) 11.35            -                        -   11.35 

              
-                      -    

             
-   

                 
-                    -              -    

              
-   11.35 

Factory Building 1090.94            -                        -   1090.94 302.85                    -    35.86 338.71                  -    
  
454.57  

      
454.57  297.65 

Furniture & 
Fixture 6.58            -                        -   6.58 6.18                    -    0.02 6.20                  -              -    

              
-   0.38 

Computers 7.12            -                        -   7.12 6.72                    -    0.03 6.75                  -              -    
              

-   0.37 
Tools & 

Equipments 12.60            -                        -   12.60 12.02                    -    0.00 12.02                  -              -    
              

-   0.58 

Electric Items 29.25            -                        -   29.25 28.45                    -    0.06 28.51                  -              -    
              

-   0.74 

Vehicles 20.88            -                        -   20.88 14.39                    -    
             

-   14.39                  -              -    
              

-   6.49 
Plant & 

Machinery 1157.17            -    52.90 1104.27 723.49 44.21 77.47 756.75                  -              -    
              

-   347.51 
Office 

Equipment 2.57            -                        -   2.57 2.41                    -    0.02 2.43                  -              -    
              

-   0.14 

Air Conditioner 6.63            -                        -   6.63 6.26                    -    
             

-   6.26                  -              -    
              

-   0.37 
Sub Total 2345.09            -    52.90 2292.19 1102.77 44.21 113.46 1172.02                  -    454.57 454.57 665.58 
B) Intangible 
Assets                         

Goodwill              -              -                        -   
                
-    

              
-                       -    

             
-    

                 
-          

                 
-    

Sub Total              -              -                        -   
                
-    

              
-                       -    

             
-    

                 
-          

                 
-    

Grand Total (A+B) 2345.09            -    52.90 2292.19 1102.77 44.21 113.46 1172.02 0.00 454.57 454.57 665.58 
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2.2PreviousYear (` in Lacs) 

Particulars  

     Gross  Block         Depreciation  
 Impairement 

  
  

 Net  
Block  

As at 
1st April 

2020 
 Addition   Deduction/ 

Adjustment  

 As at 
31st 

March 
2021  

 Upto 
1st April 

2020  

Deduction/ 
Adjustment 

 For 
the 

Year  

 As at 
31st 

March 
2021  

AS AT 1ST 
APRIL,2020  

For the 
Year  

 As at 
31st 

March 
2021 

 As at 
31st 

March 
2021  

A) Property, 
Plant and 
Equipment             

Land (Lease 
Hold) 11.35            -                        -   11.35 

        
-                      -    - 

                 
-                        -  - - 11.35 

Factory 
Building 1090.94            -                        -   1090.94 266.99                    -    35.86 302.85  - - - 788.09 

Furniture & 
Fixture 7.34            -    

                
0.76  6.58 6.75 

               
0.59  0.03 6.19  - -  -  0.39 

Computers 8.74            -    
                

1.62  7.12 8.27 
               

1.61  0.06 6.72  - -  -  0.40 
Tools & 

Equipments 12.68            -    
                

0.08  12.60 12.10 
               

0.08  - 12.02  -  -  - 0.58 

Electric Items 29.88            -    
                

0.63  29.25 28.63 
               

0.44  0.26 28.45  -  -  - 0.80 

Vehicles 22.54            -    
                

1.66  20.88 15.97 
               

1.58  - 14.39  -  -  - 6.49 
Plant & 

Machinery 1203.71            -    
              

46.54  1157.17 664.03 
             

22.65  82.13 723.51  -  -  - 433.66 
Office 

Equipment 3.09            -    
                

0.52  2.57 2.88 
       

0.49  0.02 2.41  -  -  - 0.16 
Air 

Conditioner 7.28            -    
                

0.65  6.63 6.88 
               

0.62  - 6.26  -  -  - 0.37 
Sub Total 2397.55 - 52.46 2345.09 1012.50 28.06 118.36 1102.80       1242.27 
B) Intangible 
Assets                         

Goodwill              -              -                        -   
                
-    

              
-                       -    

             
-    

                 
-     - -  -  - 

Sub Total              -              -                        -   
                
-    

              
-                       -    

             
-    

                 
-     - -   - 

                 
-   

Grand Total 
(A+B) 2397.55 0.00 52.46 2345.09 1012.50 28.06 118.36 1102.80  -  -  - 1242.27 
Note: Previous year figures have been regrouped whereever necessary. 
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TARAPUR TRANSFORMERS LIMITED  F.Y.2021-22  (` in Lacs)

NOTES AS AT 31ST MARCH 2022 AS AT 31ST MARCH 2021

` `

3 OTHER NON CURRENT ASSETS
I Capital Advances -                              43.38

(Unsecured,Considered Good)
II Security Deposit 61.86 61.89

(Unsecured,Considered Good) 61.86 61.89

Total (I+II+III) 61.86 105.27

4 INVENTORIES
(As Taken Valued & Certified by the Management)
Raw Materials 28.28                          84.68                          
Work In Progress -                              -                              
Finished Goods -                              -                              
Stock In Trade -                              -                              

28.28                          84.68                          

5 CURRENT INVESTMENTS
I Trade Investments

Equity Shares, Quoted,Valued At Cost-Fully Paid Up 31.03.2022 31.03.2021
In Other

Marsons Ltd (F.V.`  10/-) 118660 118660 16.60 16.60

KDJ Holidayscapes & Resorts Ltd. (F.V. `  2/-) 260398 260398 257.70 257.70

Bilpower Limited  (F.V. ` 10/-) 100 100 -                                  -                                  

Bil Energy Systems Limited (F.V. ` 1/-) 200 200 -                                  -                                  
COMMEX TECHNOLOGIES LTD 10000 10000 0.29                            0.29                            
CORE EDUCATION & TECHNOLOGIES LTD 6000 6000 0.79                            0.79                            
HANUNG TOYS & TECHNOLOGIES LTD 5000 5000 0.67                            0.67                            
IDFC LTD 4700 4700 8.02                            8.02                            
IVRCL LIMITED 10000 10000 0.54                            0.54                            
JP POWER VENTURES LTD 10000 10000 1.45                            1.45                            
JVL AGRO INDUSTRIES LIMITED 3000 3000 0.64                            0.64                            
K SERA SERA LIMITED 257000 257000 3.40                            3.40                            
ORBIT CORPORATION LIMTIED 5000 5000 0.66                            0.66                            
PENTAMEDIA GRAPHICS LIMITED 7488 7488 0.48                            0.48                            
RATTANINDIA POWER LIMTIED 1000 1000 0.31                            0.31                            
SINTEX INDUSTRIES LIMITED 4688 4688 3.69                            3.69                            
UNITECH LIMITED 30593 30593 2.31                            2.31                            
ZENITH BIRLA INDIA LIMITED 26709 26709 1.75                            1.75                            

299.30                         299.30                         

Less: Provision for Dimunition in Value of Quoted Investment 272.22                         255.40                         
Net Quoted Investment 27.08                          43.90                          

II Other Investments
Equity Shares, Unquoted,Valued At Cost-Fully Paid Up

In Other
Jaidat Marketing Pvt. Ltd 4000 4000 10.00 10.00
Shri Tradco Dessan Pvt Ltd (F.V `  10/-) 1580000 158.00 158.00
Honest Derivatives Pvt Ltd (F.V `  10/-) 500000 50.00 50.00

    Spectrum Trimpex Pvt. Ltd. (F.V. ` 100/-) 41000 205.00 205.00
423.00 423.00

Less: Provision for Dimunition in Value of Unquoted Investment 361.16 351.20
Net Unquoted Investments 61.84 71.80

Total Net Current Investments 88.92 115.70

Aggregate Amount of Quoted Investment  299.30 299.30
Market Valued of Quoted Investments  27.08 18.90

Aggregate Amount of Unquoted Investment  423.00 423.00

6 TRADE RECEIVABLE

I Due for  a Period Exceeding Six Months
-(Unsecured and Considered Good) 2258.91 1649.95
-(Unsecured and Considered Doubtful) 169.99 1016.90

2428.90 2666.85
Less :Provision For Doubtful Debts 169.99 1016.9

2258.91 1649.95
II Other Receivables

-(Unsecured and Considered Good) 355.55 -                                  

2614.46 1649.95

Considered Good - Unsecured
Less Than 6 Months -                              0.00
Less Than One Year 768.57 273.27
Less Than Two Years 447.82 1320.61
Less Than Three Years 428.07 56.07
More Than Three Years 970.00 -                                  

2614.46 1649.95

Unsecured and considered Doubtful
Less Than 6 Months -                              -                              
Less Than One Year -                              -                              
Less Than Two Years -                              -                              
Less Than Three Years -                              -                              
More Than Three Years 169.99                         1016.90

169.99                         1016.90

7 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
A) Current Accounts 2.16 0.81
B) Cash In Hand 7.46 7.06

9.62 7.87

QTY

1580000
500000

41000
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TARAPUR TRANSFORMERS LIMITED  F.Y.2021-22  (` in Lacs)

NOTES AS AT 31ST MARCH 2022 AS AT 31ST MARCH 2021

` `

8 OTHER BANK BALANCES
A) Amount Held as Margin Money -                                  -                                  
B) Fixed Deposit with Banks  * 193.31                         187.80
C)  EARMARKED BALANCES WITH BANKS-UNPAID DIVIDENDEarmarked Balances with Banks-Unpaid Dividend -                                  -                                  

193.31 187.80

9 OTHER CURRENT ASSETS
A (Unsecured and Considered Good)
I Loan and Advance Recoverable In Cash or Kind

TO RELATED PARTY     1,261.88                      614.66                         
To Others 849.10 987.01

II Balance With Statutory/Revenue Authorities Excise and Service Tax 121.28 159.42
III Prepaid Expenses 0.00 0.10
IV Advance Income Tax (Net Of Provision) 53.52 45.97

2285.78 1807.16
B (Unsecured and Considered Doubtful)

Loan and Advance Recoverable In Cash or Kind
To Others 991.75 904.51                         

3277.53 2711.67

Less : Provision of Doubtful Loans and Advances 991.75 904.51                         
2285.78 1807.16

10 EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL
Authorised Share Capital
25000000 (25000000) Equity Shares Of ` 10/-  Each 2500.00 2500.00

Issued, Subscribed & Paid Up
19500011 (19500011) Equity Shares Of ` 10/- Each 1950.00 1950.00

1950.00 1950.00

10.1 Number of Equity Shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year are same i.e. 19500011 of `  10/- each and hence no reconciliation is required

10.2 Terms/Rights attached to equity shares
The company has issued only one class of equity shares having a par value of `  10/- per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share.

In the event of liquidation of the company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the company, after distribution of all 
preferential amounts.  The distribution will be in proportion to the numbers of equity shares held by shareholders.

10.3 Details of shresholders holding more than 5% of the total shares
Equity shares of `  10/- each fully paid
Shares Held By No.of Shares No.of Shares % holding
Bilpower Limited 8416460

10.4 Details of shareholding of promotor and promotor group
Name of Shareholder

Bilpower Limited 43.1613 8416460 8416460
Manjulata Choudhary 0.0001 10 10
Rajendra Kumar Choudhary 1.3977 272545 272545
Varshadevi Choudhary 0.0001 10 10
Mohan Randive 0 1 1
Prabhadevi Choudhary 0.0001 10 10
Choudhary Global Limited 0.0718 14000 14000.00

11 OTHER EQUITY

I Securities Premium Account 6042.22 6042.22

II Capital Reserve 22.71 22.71

III General Reserve 279.92 279.92

IV Surplus i.e. Balance in Statement of Profit & Loss 
As At Beginning Of The Year (8059.70) (5395.73)
Retain Value of Assets -                                  
Loss For The Year 612.84 (2663.97)
As at the End of the Year (7446.86) (8059.70)

Total (I+II+III+IV) (1102.01) (1714.85)

12 OTHER NON CURRENT FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
Secured Loans

Terms Loans
From Bank -                                  -                                  

-                                  -                                  

13 TRADE PAYABLES
Trade Payables 124.43 205.75

124.43 205.75

Trade Payables
Less than One Year 14.59 80.15
Less than Two Years -                                  -                                  
Less than Three Years -                                  102.89
More than Three Years 109.84 22.72

124.43 205.76

13.1 Trade Payables includes following related parties :-
` 12.04 Lacs ( P.Y. ` 12.04 Lacs ) payable to Related Party Niksan Engineering Co Limited. ` Nil (P.Y. ` 30.64 Lacs) payable to Related Party 

Aesthetic Stampings and Laminations Limited
13.2 The Company has not received any intimation from the suppliers under the Micro, Small & Medium Enterprises Development Act 2006 & therefore   

disclosures, if any, relating to amounts unpaid as at the year end together with interest paid/payable as required under the said act have not been given.

31st March 2022 31st March 2021
% holding

43.16 8416460 43.16

% of share holding Number of shares as at
As at March 31 2022 As at March 31 2021
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TARAPUR TRANSFORMERS LIMITED  F.Y.2021-22  (` in Lacs)

NOTES AS AT 31ST MARCH 2022 AS AT 31ST MARCH 2021

` `

14 OTHER CURRENT FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
I Secured Loans

Loans Repayable on Demand
-Working Capital Loan Repayable on Demand from Bank 2868.65 2868.65

2868.65 2868.65
II Unsecured Loans

From Related Party 374.37 310.14                         
From Other Party 312.60 37.50                          

686.97 347.64

Total (I+II) 3555.62 3216.29

Details of Loans from Related Parties
Promotors 43.25                          18.25                          
Directors -                              -                              
Others 331.12                         291.89                         

374.37                         310.14                         

% OF Loan from Related Parties
Promotors 11.55                          5.88                            
Directors -                              -                              
Others 88.45                          94.12                          

100.00                         100.00                         

14.1 Working Capital facilities is secured by Hypothecation of all Current Assets of the Company.  The facilities are further collaterally Secured by equitable 
Mortgage of Land and Building at Boisar Unit and Hypothecation of all Fixed Assets of Boisar Unit.

14.2 Interest Rate-base rate + 4.50% currently 14.75% per annum with monthly rest.
14.3 The Company has defaulted in repayment of dues including interest and principal to Canara Bank, on its various fund facilities availed, outstanding 

amounting to `  4026.00 Lacs.  

14.4 The lender bank has issued a Legal Notice dated 22/12/2014, to the Compnay asking them to pay outstanding dues of ` 3704.84 Lacs within 7 days, failing

 which Lender Bank will intiate legal action against the Company.  In view of Legal Notice and based on the Legal advice received by the Company it has
 been decide not to provide any interest on outstanding liability of Canara Bank w.e.f. 01/04/2014. Further, on 22nd October 2018, Canara Bank sold factory 
 premises at J 20, MIDC, boisar, including the Plant & machinery thereon, by an e Auction on "as is where is" basis for Rs. 321.50 Lacs. The accounting effect of
 the same has accoordingly been given in the books of accounts. 
The Company has not provided for Interest payable to Canara Bank amounting to ` 1778.68 Lacs for the year ended 31st March 2022. Also for the financial
year 2014-15, 2015-16, 2016-17, 2017-18, 2018-19, 2019-20 & 2020-21 the company has not provided for ` 6702.85 lacs. The Company has also not made any provision 
for penal interest claimed by the bank. As a result the loss for the year ended 31st March 2022 is understated by ` 1778.68 Lacs & current liabilities as at
 31st March, 2022 are also understated by ` 1778.68 Lacs and reserves are overstated by ` 1778.68 Lacs. As a result the accumulated Reserves are overstated by 
` 8481.52 Lacs. The amount of penal interest cannot be quantified as the details have not been received from the bank.

14.5 Other unsecured loan received from related party Bil Energy Systems Ltd. ` 331.12 Lacs (P.Y. ` 291.89 Lacs), Bilpower Limited `. 43.25 Lacs (P .Y.`. 18.25)

15 OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES
I Current Maturities of Long Term Debts * -                                  -                                  
II Interest Accrued and Due on Borrowings 145.10 145.10
III Trade Advances 34.44 4.44
IV LIC Gratutirty 1.01 1.01
V Provision for Unascertained Liability ** 1,199.06                      1,348.95                      
VI Proposed Final Dividend -                                  -                                  
VII Statutory Dues 17.19 17.19
VIII Other Payables 22.97 26.82

1419.77 1543.51
15.1 **Provision for unascertained liabilty has been created in order to provide for the amount which will be incurred for restoring the transformers.

16 REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS
I Sales of Manufactured Goods

- Transformers -                                  9.47                            
- Transformers Parts (Repair) 2.20                            3.10                            
- Sheets /Coils 35.32                          -                                  
- Others -                                  -                                  

37.52                          12.57                          
II Sales of Trading Goods

- Iron & Steel, CRGO Electrical Steel Sheet/Stripe 52.18                          95.71
- Others 67.28                          -                                  

119.46                         95.71
III Sales of Services

- Other 44.25                          50.73                          
44.25                          50.73                          

IV Other Operating  Revenues
- Scrap Sales 52.21                          -                              

52.21                          -                              

Sub Total (I+II+III+IV) 253.44 159.01

Less Excise Duty -                                  -                              

Total Revenue From Operations (Net) 253.44 159.01

17 OTHER INCOME
I Interest Income 

- Interest from Bank on Deposit 8.22 12.30
- Interest on Loans and Advances 244.44 26.52

II Dividend Income
- From Others -                                  -                                  

III Other Non-Operating Income
- Rent Income 31.72 57.40                          
- Other Income -                              0.05                            
- Doubtful Debtors Reversed 846.91 -                              
- Profit on Sales of Assets 65.48                          37.33                          
- Penalty / Deduction -                                  3.85                            
- Excess Provision Written Back 149.88                         -                                  

1346.65 137.45
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TARAPUR TRANSFORMERS LIMITED  F.Y.2021-22  (` in Lacs)

NOTES AS AT 31ST MARCH 2022 AS AT 31ST MARCH 2021

` `

18 COST OF MATERIALS CONSUMED
Cost for Sales
Cost of Material Consumed
- Opening Stock 84.68                          -                                  
Add Purchase During the year 92.10                          224.78                         
Less Closing Stock 28.28                          84.68                          

148.50                         140.10                         

19 STOCK IN TRADE PURCHASE
- Iron & Steel, CRGO Electrical Steel  Sheet/Stripe -                              -                              
- Others -                              -                                  

-                              -                              

20 CHANGES IN INVENTORIES

At The End Of The Year
Finished Goods -                              -                              
Work-In-Progress -                              -                              
Stock In Trade -                              -                              

A) -                              -                              
At The Beginning Of The Year

Finished Goods -                              -                              
Work-In-Progress -                              -                              
Stock In Trade -                              -                              

B) -                              -                              

Total (B-A) -                              -                              

21 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSES
I Salaries, Wages. Bonus & Allowances 40.95 18.56
II Contribution to Provident & Other Funds 0.10 0.08
III Staff Welfare Expenses 0.57 0.07

41.62 18.71

22 FINANCE COSTS

Interest Expenses
From Bank -                                  -                                  
From Other 5.10                            -                                  

5.10                            -                              

Other Borrowing Costs 1.30 1.16
6.40 1.16

23 OTHER EXPENSES
Manufacturing Expenses

Store & Spares 0.27 1.29                            
Power and Fuel 8.54 7.65
Factory Expenses 13.88 15.65
Labour Charges 14.66 10.95
Repair and Maintenance

-Repair and Maintenance-Plant & Machinery 0.82 0.43                            
-Repair and Maintenance-Others 3.05 3.39

Packing Expenses 0.00 0.06                            
Selling and Distribution Expenses

Freight and Transport Charges 0.90 0.08                            
Commission and Brokerage 0.09 15.06                          
Advertisement and Publicity Expenses 0.52 0.35
Liquidated Damages (Penalty) -                                  -                                  
Bad Debts Written off -                                  46.41                          
Penalty /Deduction -                                  -                                  
Business Promotion Expenses 12.93 0.62

Administrative & Office Expenses
Insurance Charges 0.24 0.18
Conveyance and Travelling 1.67 1.81
Postage & Telegram and Telephone 0.02 0.05
Payment to Auditors

-Audit Fees (Including Tax Audit) 0.25 0.25
Legal & Professional Fees

-Consultancy Fees 0.00 3.04                            
-Legal & Professional Fees 9.81 13.68

Stamp Duty, Stamp Paper and Franking Charges 0.10 0.07
Electricity Charges 0.06 0.04
Office & General Expenses 1.17 1.57
Donation -                                  1.05
Registrar & Share Transfer Charges 0.94 0.84
Rates & Taxes 3.04 2.34
Rent 1.20 1.20
Printing & Stationery 0.11 0.03
Impairement Loss 454.56 -                              
Copper to be restore -                                  674.47                         
Sundry Balance W/Off 33.28                          (6.30)
Loss On Sales Of Assets -                              -                              
Exchange Rate Flutuation 1.14                            (1.95)
Provision for Debtors 0.00 789.27                         
Provision of Loans & Advance 87.24 750.08                         
Dimunition in Value of Quoted Investments 16.82 (2.76)
Dimunition in Value of Unquoted Investments 9.96 351.20                         

677.27 2682.10
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2022 
 

24. Financial Instruments 
 
1) Capital Management   

The primary objective of the Company’s capital management is intended to maximise the return to shareholders for meeting the long-term and short-
term goals of the Company through the optimization of the debt and equity balance. The Company is monitoring capital using debt equity ratio as its 
base which is debt to equity. For the purpose of capital management, capital includes issued equity capital, securities premium and all other reserves 
attributable to the equity shareholders of the Company. Net debt includes all long and short-term borrowings (including current maturities of long 
term debt) as reduced by cash and cash equivalents. 

  
Debt-to-equity ratio are as follows: 

Particuler March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 
        
Debt (A) 509982582 496555308 
Equity (B) 84799745 23515760 
        

Debt to Equity Ratio (A/B) 7.00 22.08 

  
  2) Financial Risk Management Objective And Policies  

The Company is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. Risk management is carried out by the company under policies approved by 
the board of directors. The Company’s documented risk management policies are effective tool in mitigating the various financial risk to which the 
business is exposed to in the course of daily operations This Risk management plan defines how risks associated with the Company will be identified, 
analysed, and managed. It outlines how risk management activities will be performed, recorded, and monitored by the Company. The basic objective 
of risk management plan is to implement an integrated risk management approach to ensure all significant areas of risks are identified, understood 
and effectively managed, to promote a shared vision of risk management and encourage discussion on risks at all levels of the organisation to 
provide a clear understanding of risk/benefit trade-offs, to deploy appropriate risk management methodologies and tools for use in identifying, 
assessing, managing and reporting on risks, and to determine the appropriate balance between cost and control of risk and deploy appropriate 
resources to manage/optimize key risks. Activities are developed to provide feedback to management and other interested parties (e.g. Audit 
committee, Board etc.). The results of these activities ensure that risk management plan is effective in the long term 

a) Market risk   

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market 
prices comprise three types of risk: foreign currency rate risk, interest rate risk and other price risks, such as equity price risk and commodity risk. 

  
  i) Foreign Exchange Risk and Sensitivity 

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange 
rates. The Company’s exposure to the risk of changes in foreign exchange rates relates primarily to the Company’s operating activities. Currently, the 
Company does not have any transaction in Foreign Currencies.  

  
  ii) Interest Rate Risk and Sensitivity 

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates 
.In order to optimize the Company’s position with regards to interest expenses and to manage the interest rate risk treasury performs a 
comprehensive corporate interest rate risk management by balancing the proportion of fixed rate and floating rate financial instruments in its total 
portfolio. 

  
  iii) Commodity Price Risk 

The Company is engaged in construction work and commodities like ferrous and non ferrous metal materials, Welded pipes, MS TMT bars & Metals, 
Cements, etc are the basic commodity for consumption. Commodity price risk arises due to fluctuation in prices of metal products. The Company 
mitigate the risk by natural hedge as any increase/ decrease in materials price directly reflect the changes in finished goods price.  

  
b) Credit Risk   
Credit risk is the risk that a counter party will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract, leading to a financial loss. 
The Company is exposed to credit risk for trade receivables, other bank balances, loans, other financial assets and financial guarantees. 

  
  i) Trade Receivables 

The Company extends credit to customers in normal course of business. The Company considers factors such as credit track record in the market and 
past dealings with the Company for extension of credit to customers. The Company monitors the payment track record of the customers. 
Outstanding customer receivables are regularly monitored.  

  
  ii) Bank Balances 

The Company seeks to limit its credit risk with respect to banks by only dealing with reputable banks. 
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c) Liquidity Risk 
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company may not be able to meet its present and future cash and collateral obligations without incurring 
unacceptable losses. The Company’s objective is to, at all times, maintain optimum levels of liquidity to meet its cash and collateral requirements. The 
Company limits its liquidity risk by ensuring funds from trade receivables. 

  
Maturity Patterns of Financial Liabilities (` In Lacs)  

Particular As at 31st March, 2022 
0-1 Years 1-5 Years Total 

Borrowings           363.82             3191.80           3555.62  
Trade Payable           14.59        109.84                               124.43  
Other Financial Liability                  -       145.10   145.10 

  

Particular As at 31st March, 2021 
0-1 Years 1-5 Years Total 

Borrowings           65.65                3150.64            3216.29  
Trade Payable           80.15    125.60   205.75 

Other Financial Liability                    - 145.10   
                   

145.10 
 
25.  Contingent Liabilities   

                   (` in Lacs) 
Sr. No. Particulars As at 31st March, 2022 As at 31st March, 2021 
(A) Guarantees outstanding 373.16 373.16 
(B) Sales Tax Demands pending in appeals 341.94 238.36 
(C) Income Tax Demands including interest which is under 

dispute and pending in appeals 99.40 99.40 
(D) Custom duty on pending export obligation against 

import of machinery 144.85 144.85 
 

26. C.I.F value of Import, Expenditures and Earnings in Foreign Currency 
(` in Lacs) 

Sr. No. Particulars As at 31st March, 2022 As at 31st March, 2021 
a) C.I.F Value of Import   
   Raw Material & Trading Goods 0.00 0.00 
   Capital Goods   
b) Expenditure in Foreign Currency   
    Travelling Expenses 0.00 0.00 
c)  Earnings in Foreign Currency   

 
27. Segment Reporting 

The company primarily deals in the business of Manufacturing, Repair, Refurbishment and Upliftment of transformers and there are 
no material exports hence there is no Primary reportable segment, either product wise or geographical, in the context of Indian 
Accounting Standard 108 issued by The Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. 

 
28. Related Party Disclosures 

(A) The Company had transactions with the following related parties 
Sr 
No. 

Name of the Related Party Relationship 

1 Bilpower Limited Associates 
2 Bil Energy Systems Limited Associates 
3 Rajendra Kumar Choudhary Key Management Personnel 
4 Niksan Engineering Co. Limited Company of relative of KMP 
5 Choudhary Global Limited Company of relative of KMP 
6 Viniyog Mercantile Pvt. Ltd. Company of relative of KMP 
7 Veedhata Towers Pvt. Ltd Company of relative of KMP  
8 Harsh Choudhary Relative of KMP 

 
 

89



 
(B) Related Party transactions:          
           (` in Lacs) 
Sr. 
No. 

Nature of Transactions Nature of Relationship Total Transaction 
Associates Key 

Management 
Personnel 

Relatives of   KMP  
& Their Proprietory 
Concern & Company 

1 Purchase of Goods - - 50.70 50.70 
  - - (46.02) (46.02) 
2 Sales of Goods - - 323.30 323.30 
  (-) - - (-) 
3 Receiving of Services 

a) Payment of Remuneration 
 
 
b) Rent Exps. 

 

 
13.07 
(3.00) 

 
 
 
 

1.20 

 
13.07 
(3.00) 

 
1.20 

    - (1.20) (1.20) 
 
4 

Finance (Including Loan & 
Equity      

 Contributions in Cash or Kind)     
  Loans & Advances  22.00 - - 22.00 
  Received (29.58) (0.14) - (29.72) 
       
  Loans & Advances Given - 2.50 807.48 809.98 
   (-) (-) (472.41) (472.41) 
5  Purchase of Investment 

(Share) 
- 
- 

- 
- 

- 
- 

- 
- 

6 Outstanding 31.03.2022     
 Loans & Advances  374.37 - - 374.37 
 Receivable (310.14) - - (310.14) 
 Trade Receivable - 

- 
- 
- 

43.75 
(0.75) 

43.75 
(0.75) 

 Trade Payable - - 12.04 12.04 
  - - (42.68) (42.68) 

       
  Loans & Advances Given 

 5.77  1261.88 
 (614.66) 

                        1267.65                       
(614.66) 

  Expenses payable 
  0.20 

(0.30) 
0.20 

(0.30) 
 Note : Figures in Brackets Related to previous year 
 

Disclosure in respect of Material Related Party Transactions During the year:- 
 

1. Purchase of Goods/Expenses Includes : Bil Energy Systems Limited ` Nil (P.Y. ` 66.66 Lacs)    
2. Receiving of Services 

A) Remuneration Payment:-R.K.Choudhary ` 12.00 Lacs and Suresh More ` 1.07 Lacs (P.Y ` 3lacs) 
B) Rent Expenses : Harsh Choudhary ` 1.20 Lacs (P.Y ` 1.20 Lacs) 

3. Finance (Including Loans & Equity Contributions on Cash or Kind) 
A) Loans & Advances Received includes:-  Bilpower Limited ` 22.00 Lacs (P.Y. ` Nil), Bil Energy Systems Limited ` Nil 

(P.Y. ` 29.58Lacs). Rajendra Kumar Choudhary ` Nil (P.Y.0.14 Lacs) 
B) Loans & Advances Given includes:- Choudhary Global Limited ` 618.98 Lacs (P.Y. ` 181.01)   

Veedhata Towers Limited  ` 188.5 (P.Y. `291.40 Lacs),Rajendra Kumar Choudhary `.2.50 Lacs(P.Y. ` Nil) 
     4. Outstanding as at 31st March, 2022.  

A) Loans & Advance Received includes:- Bil Energy Systems Limited ` 331.12 Lacs (P.Y. ` 291.88 Lacs) 
                                  Bilpower Limited `. 43.25 Lacs (P.Y. ` 18.25) 

B) Trade Receivable includes:- Viniyog Mercantile Pvt. Ltd. ` Nil (P.Y ` 0.75 Lacs) 
Aesthetic Stampings and Laminations Limited ` 43.75Lacs (P.Y. Nil) 

           C)    Trade Payables includes:- Nik-San Engineering Co Limited ` 12.04 Lacs (P.Y. ` 12.04 Lacs) 
                                  Aesthetic Stampings and Laminations Limited ` Nil (P.Y. ` 30.64 Lacs ) 
           
           D)    Loans & Advance Given includes : Choudhary Global Limited `740.24 Lacs (P.Y. `181.01 Lacs ) 
   Veedhata Towers Pvt. Ltd ` 521.64 Lacs (P.Y. `  433.65 Lacs)  
                         E) Expenses Payable :- Harsh Choudhary ` 0.20 Lacs (P.Y ` 0.30 Lacs )  

 
 
29. Raw Material Consumed:-                  

The material purchases have been applied towards manufacturing as well as repairs of transformers. Since the material has been 
used in common facilities towards both and since the requirement of law is to show consumption of Raw Material for 
Manufacturing, the same has not been given. 
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        30. Purchase of Trading Goods:-  

                                             (`  in Lacs) 
Sr. No. Category As at 31st March, 2022 As at 31st March, 2021 
1 C R Sheet / Coil - - 
2 CRGO Electrical Steel Sheet/Coil - - 
3 PPGI Coated Coil - - 
4 H.R.Plate - - 

Total - - 
31. Sale of Products Comprises:-  

i) Manufactured goods  (` in Lacs) 
Sr. No. Category As at 31st March, 2022          As at 31st March, 2021 
1 Transformers & Parts - 9.47 
2 Reparing of Transformers 2.20 3.10 
3 Scrap 52.21 - 
4 CRGO Electrical Steel Sheet/Coil 35.32 - 

Total 89.73 12.57 

ii) Traded Goods                                                                (` in Lacs) 
Sr. No. Category As at 31st March, 2022              As at 31st March, 2021 
1 C R Sheet / Coil 52.17 - 
2 Copper Winding Wire 67.28 - 
3 Others 44.25 146.44 
4 PPGI Coated Coil - 

Total  163.70 146.44 

 
        32. Details of Closing Stock 

i) Closing Stock of Finished Goods (` in Lacs) 

Sr. No. Category As at 31st March, 2022            As at 31st March, 2021 

1 Distribution Transformers - - 

2 CTPT - - 

3 Scrap - - 

Total  - - 

 ii) Closing Stock of Raw Material/WIP  (` in Lacs) 

Sr. No. Category As at 31st March, 2022            As at 31st March, 2021 

1 PPGI Coated Coil - 13.21 

2 Motor Stampings 22.48 25.75 

3 Other 5.80 45.71 

Total  28.28 84.68 
 
 

33. Earnings Per Share (Eps)                                                        (` in Lacs)        
Particular As at 31st March, 2022 As at 31st March, 2021 
Profit after tax 612.83 (2663.97) 
Weighted average number of Equity Shares     
           -Basic & Diluted 19500011 19500011 
Earning Per Share (in Rs.)     
           -Basic & Diluted 3.14 (13.66) 

 
34. Payment to Auditors :                                        (` in Lacs)          

Particular As at 31st March, 2022 As at 31st March, 2021 
As Auditors 0.25 0.25 
Other Jobs 0.00 0.00 
Total 0.25 0.25 
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       35.  Financial Ratios 
 

Ratio /  Measure March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 Variances % Explanation to 
variances exceeding 
25% 

Current Ratio 
 

1.02 0.78 31.92% Due to reversal of 
provision for 
doubtful debts. 

Debt-Equity Ratio 
 

6.01 21.12 -71.52% N.A. As the variance 
is less than 25% 

Debt Service Coverage Ratio 
 

N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A.As  the loan has 
been classified as 
NPA by the bank. 

Return on Equity Ratio % 
 

113.16 -169.99 -166.57% N.A. As the variance 
is less than 25% 

Inventory turnover ratio 
 

2.63 3.31 -20.55% N.A. As the variance 
is less than 25% 

Trade Receivables turnover 
ratio 
 

0.12 0.08 54.44% Due to reversal of 
provision for 
doubtful debts. 

Trade payables turnover ratio 
 

0.56 1.28 -56.36% N.A. As the variance 
is less than 25% 

Net capital turnover ratio 
 

0.30 0.68 -55.80% N.A. As the variance 
is less than 25% 

Net profit ratio % 
 

38.30 -898.61 -104.26% N.A. As the variance 
is less than 25% 

Return on Capital employed 
% 
 

14.03% -77.18% 118.18% Company made net 
profit in F.Y. 21-22 as 
compare to net loss in 
F.Y.20-21 

Return on investment % 
 

72.27% -1132.84% 106.38% Company made net 
profit in F.Y. 21-22 as 
compare to net loss in 
F.Y.20-21 

 
 

35. (B) Methodology of Ratio / Measure 
Ratio / Measure Methodology 

Current Ratio 
 

 
Current assets over current liabilities 
 

Debt-Equity Ratio 
 

Debt over total shareholders' equity 
 

Debt Service Coverage Ratio 
 

EBIT over current debt 

Return on Equity Ratio % 
 

PAT over total average equity 

Inventory turnover ratio 
 

Cost of Goods Sold over Average Value of Inventory 

Trade Receivables turnover ratio 
 

Revenue from operations over average trade receivables 

Trade payables turnover ratio 
 

Total credit Purchase over average trade payables 

Net capital turnover ratio 
 

Revenue from operations over total shareholders' equity 

Net profit ratio % 
 

Net profit over revenue 

Return on Capital employed % 
 

PBIT over average capital employed 

Return on investment % Dividend and net fair value gain over weighted average 
investments 

 
 

36. Term Deposit Receipts wherever obtained are endorsed in favor of Banks and  
Government Departments against Bank Guarantee, L/C Facility etc. 
 
 

37. Disclosure pursuant to adoption of Indian Accounting Standard 19 
 Gratuity liability for the year is determined on actuarial valuation by the Life Insurance Co of India with whom the company has 

taken a policy for the settlement of future liability. 
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38. Some of the Creditors / Debtors / Loans / Advances are subject to Confirmations and resultant   reconciliation, if any. 
 

 
39. The Company has not received any intimation from the suppliers under the Micro, Small & Medium Enterprises Development Act 

2006 & therefore disclosures, if any relating to amounts unpaid as at the year end together with interest paid/payable as required 
under the said Act have not been given. 

 
 

40. In terms of the requirements of the Indian Accounting Standards-36 on "Impairment of Assets" issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India, the amount recoverable against Fixed Assets has been estimated for the period by the management based on 
present value of estimated future cash flows expected to arise from the continuing use of such assets. The recoverable amount so 
assessed was found to be adequate to cover the carrying amount of the assets, therefore no provision for impairment in value thereof 
has been considered necessary, by the management. 

 
41. As per the best estimate of the management, no provision is required to be made as per  Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 37 

"Provision, Contingent Liabilities & Contingent Assets", in respect of any present obligation as a result of a past event that could lead 
to a probable outflow of resources which would be required to settle the obligation. 

   
42. Sundry Debtors as on the date of Balance Sheet are net of amounts received after discounting of Letter of Credits. 

 
43. The recoverable amount of Factory Building located at Pali Village was assessed to be lower than the carrying value. Further  

The value in use of this building has also been assessed at a very negligible amount . Accordingly the management decided to carry   
Out a valuation exercise from a registered valuer in order to ascertain the fair value of the building. As per the valuation report 
submitted by the valuer the fair value of the building has depreciated to a great extent and hence as per IND-AS 36 management 
decided to book an impairment loss. Rs. 454.56 Lacs.  

 
44. Previous Year Figures have been regrouped / Re cast wherever necessary. 

 
 
 

Signature to the Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit and Loss and notes which form an integral part of account. 
 

 
As per our attached report of even date. 

For Dalal & Kala Associates For and on bahalf of the Board 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Regn.No. 102017W 

Pooja Soni Suresh More 
Company Secretary Managing Director 

Din : 06873425 
 
 
Anand Drolia                                                         Kanji Chavda Rajendra Kumar Choudhary 
Partner                                                                      Chief Finance Officer Director 
Membership No. 036718                                             Din : 00494663 
Mumbai: 30th May 2022 
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